
Stock Code: 2059 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

King Slide Works Co., Ltd. 
 
 

 

Handbook for 
the 

 

2023 Annual Meeting of Shareholders 
 

(Translation) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MEETING TIME: June 28, 2023 
 

PLACE: Floor B1, No. 299, Shun An Road, Luzhu District, Kaohsiung, Taiwan 
 
 

This English version is a translation based on the original Chinese version. Where any 
discrepancy arises between the two versions, the Chinese version shall prevail. 

 
 



King Slide Works Co., Ltd. 
Handbook for the 2023 Annual Meeting of Shareholders 

Table of Contents 

Page 

Meeting procedures .........................................................................................................  1 

Meeting agenda ................................................................................................................  2 

Report Items ....................................................................................................................  3 

Proposed Resolutions ......................................................................................................  6 

Discussion .........................................................................................................................  8 

A.O.B ................................................................................................................................  8 

 

Annex 

I. Business Report ......................................................................................................  9 

II. Audit Committee’s Review Report .........................................................................  12 

III. Independent Auditor’s Report and the 2022 Financial Statements and  

Consolidated Financial Statements .......................................................................  13 

IV. Profit Distribution Table .........................................................................................  31 

V. Procedures for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets amendment Comparison  

Table .......................................................................................................................   32 

 
Appendix 

I. Articles of Incorporation .......................................................................................  45 

II. Rules of Procedure for Shareholders Meetings .....................................................  50 

III. Procedures for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets .................................................  53 

IV. Shareholding of all directors .................................................................................  72



- 1 - 

 

 
 

King Slide Works Co., Ltd. 
Procedures for the 2023 Annual Meeting of Shareholders 

  

I. Call the Meeting to Order 

 

II. Chairman Remarks 

 

III. Report Items 

 

IV. Proposed Resolutions 
 

V. Discussion 

 

VI. A.O.B 

 

VII.  Adjournment 
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King Slide Works Co., Ltd. 
Agenda of Annual Meeting of Shareholders 

 

Time: 9 a.m., June 28, 2023 

 

Place: Floor B1, No. 299, Shun An Road, Luzhu District, Kaohsiung, Taiwan 

 

One. Call the Meeting to Order 

 

Two. Chairman Remarks 

 

Three. Report Items 

I. 2022 Business Report 

II. 2022 Audit Committee’s Review Report 

III. 2022 Employees’ Compensation and Directors’ Remuneration  

IV. 2022 Directors’ Compensation Report 

V. Others  

 

Four. Proposed Resolutions 

I. 2022 Business Report and Financial Statements 

II. 2022 Distribution of Earnings 

 

Five. Amendment to "Procedures for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets" 

 

Six. A.O.B 

 

Seven. Adjournment 
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III. Report Items 

 

Report No. 1  

2022 Business Report is presented for approval. 

Explanation:  

For Business Report, please refer to Annex 1 (Page 9-11 of the Agenda Handbook). 

      

Report No. 2  

2022 Audit Committee’s Review Report is presented for approval. 

Explanation:  

For Audit Committee’s Review Report, please refer to Annex 2 (Page 12 of the Agenda 

Handbook) 

 

Report No. 3   

2022 Employees’ Compensation and Directors’ Remuneration  

Explanation:  

(I) The adoption is made according to Article 25 of the Articles of Incorporation. 

(II) Compensation to employees is NT$172,788,000 and remuneration to directors is 

NT$6,000,000. Both are to be distributed in cash. 

 

Report No. 4 

2022 Directors’ Remuneration Report 

Explanation:  

(I) Describe the remuneration policy, system, standard, and structure of the company’s 

directors and how the factors such as duty, risk, and engaged time relate to the 

remuneration amount. 

1. The remuneration for serving as the directors of the company shall not exceed 

the maximum salary standard stipulated in the company’s“Regulation for 

Salary Assessment of Employee” and shall be paid regardless of whether the 

company operates at a profit or loss. 

2. In accordance with the company's articles of incorporation, the remuneration for 

the chairman and directors of the company basing on the degree of participation 

in the company's operations, the value contributed, and the industry standards 

shall be determined by the board of directors authorized by the resolution of the 

shareholders' meeting. 
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3. The directors’ remuneration is ruled expressly by the articles of incorporation 

that the appropriation shall not be more than 5% of the earnings before tax. 

4. All the independent directors’ remuneration is better than the general directors’ 

for undertaking the responsibility of doubling the members of the Audit 

Committee and Remuneration Committee. 

(II) Analysis of individual director’s remuneration is as follows:  
Year：2022；Unit：NT$ Thousand；Thousand shares 

Title Name 

Directors’ remuneration The total of 
the four items 
a, b, c and d 
and their 
proportions 
to net profit 
after tax 

compensation earned as an employee of the 
Company 

The total of 
the seven 
items a, b, c d, 
e, f and g and 
their 
proportions 
to net profit 
after tax 

Com
pens
ation 
from 
reinv
estm
ent 

busin
ess 

outsi
de 
the 

subsi
diary 

or 
pare

nt 
comp
any  

remunerati
on (a) 

 

retirement 
pension 

(b) 
(Note 1) 

Directors’ 
remunerati

on (c) 
 (Note 2) 

execution 
costs (d) 

Salary, 
bonus and 

special 
expenses, 

etc. (e) 

retirement 
pension (f) 

(Note1) 

employee 
compensation (g)  

(Note 2) 

The 
Com
pany 

All 
com
pani
es in 
finan
cial 

repo
rt 

The 
Com
pany 

All 
com
pani
es in 
finan
cial 

repo
rt 

The 
Com
pany 

All 
com
pani
es in 
finan
cial 

repo
rt 

The 
Com
pany 

All 
com
pani
es in 
finan
cial 

repo
rt 

The 
Comp

any 

All 
compa
nies in 
financi

al 
report 

The 
Com
pany 

All 
com
pani
es in 
finan
cial 

repo
rt 

The 
Com
pany 

All 
com
pani
es in 
finan
cial 

repo
rt 

The 
Company 

All 
companies 
in financial 

report 
The 

Comp
any 

All 
compa
nies in 
financi

al 
report 

cash stock cash stock 

chai

rma

n 

Lin Tsung-

Chi 
1,374 1,374 33 33 4,977 4,977 － － 6,384 

0.16% 
6,384 

0.16% 
－ － － － － － － － 6,384 

0.16% 
6,384 

0.16% None 

D i r

ecto

r 

Representa

tive of 

Long Shen 

Investmen

t Inc.: Lin 

Tsung-

Lung 

－ － － － 581 581 － － 581 
0.01% 

581 
0.01% 

－ － － － － － － － 581 
0.01% 

581 
0.01% None 

－ － － － 202 202 － － 202 
0.00% 

202 
0.00% 

－ － － － － － － － 202 
0.00% 

202 
0.00% None 

Dir

ecto

r 

Wang 

Chun-

Chiang 

－ － － － 240 240 － － 240 
0.01% 

240 
0.01% 

3,804 3,804 31 31 6,407 － 6,407 － 10,482 
0.26% 

10,482 
0.26% None 

Ind

epe
nde

nt 

dire
ctor 

Hsu Fang-

Yih 
－ － － － － － 430 430 

430 
0.01% 

430 
0.01% 

－ － － － － － － － 430 
0.01% 

430 
0.01% None 

Ind

epe

nde
nt 

dire

ctor 

Cai Wen-

Zhi 
－ － － － － － 430 430 

430 
0.01% 

430 
0.01% 

－ － － － － － － － 430 
0.01% 

430 
0.01% None 
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Ind
epe

nde

nt 
dire

ctor 

Wu, Yu-
Ti 

(Note 3) 
－ － － － － － 430 430 430 

0.01% 
430 

0.01% 
－ － － － － － － － 430 

0.01% 
430 

0.01% None 

Ind
epe

nde

nt 
dire

ctor 

YANG FU-

HSUAN 
－ － － － － － 430 430 430 

0.01% 
430 

0.01% 
－ － － － － － － － 430 

0.01% 
430 

0.01% None 

Note 1： The figures are based on the recognized and appropriated amounts. 
Note 2： The figures are estimated proportionally from the amount disbursed in 2021. 
Note 3： The independent director Wu, Hsiu is renamed to Wu, Yu-Ti at February 04, 2023. 

 

 

 

Report No. 5 

Other reporting items 

Explanation: The proposals made by the shareholders in the current shareholders meeting are 

handled as follows: 

(I) It is processed in accordance with Article 172-1 of the Company Act. 

(II) A shareholder holding 1% or more of the total number of issued shares may submit a 

written proposal to the Company for discussion at the book closure date of the Annual 

Meeting of Shareholders. 

(III) A proposing shareholder is limited to one proposal only, and each content included 

in the meeting agenda shall be no more than 300 words (including text and 

punctuation). The proposing shareholder shall attend the meeting in person or by 

proxy to participate in the discussion of the proposal. 

(IV) The Company shall receive shareholder proposals during the period of April 14 - 

April 24, 2023, which should be announced on the Market Observation Post System. 

(V) The Company did not receive any proposal from shareholders. 
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IV. Proposed Resolutions 

 

Item 1   Proposed by the Board of Directors 

2022 Business Report and Financial Statements are presented for approval. 

Explanation: 

(I) King Slide’s 2022 Parent Company Only and Consolidated Financial 

Statements were audited by CPA Chen-Li Chen and CPA Chia-Ling 

Chiang of Deloitte & Touche Taiwan. Independent Auditor’s Reports 

were issued with unmodified opinion for the Parent Company Only 

Statements, and unmodified opinion with emphasis of matter paragraph 

for the Consolidated Statements. Independent Auditor’s Reports and the 

Business Report were reviewed by the Audit Committee with the written 

Audit Committee’s report issued. 

(II) The aforementioned statements (please refer to Page 13-30 of the Agenda 

Handbook) and the Business Report are enclosed (please refer to Page 9-11 

of the Agenda Handbook). 

    

 

Resolutions: 
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Item 2   Proposed by the Board of Directors 

2022 distribution of earnings is presented for approval. 

Explanation:  

(I) The amount available for distribution in the current period is 

NT$11,837,422,663. This is calculated by adding Net profit of 2022, 

NT$4,056,145,256, to the undistributed earnings of NT$8,174,350,431 from 

the previous period, the defined benefit plan re-measurement amount with a 

balance of NT$10,511,395 recognized as retained earnings, and a reversed 

special reserve of NT$3,081,246. Less appropriating a legal reserve of 

NT$406,665,665. 

(II) Earnings distribution is planned in accordance with Article 26 of the 

Articles of Incorporation as follows: 

Cash dividends: NT$20 per share is planned, totaled NT$1,905,941,440.  

The Board of Directors is to be authorized after the Annual shareholders’ 

Meeting to schedule the ex-dividend date and distribution date. 

(III) The amount of unappropriated retained earnings this year, 

NT$9,931,481,223, will be carried forward to the following year. 

(IV) The distribution of a cash dividend is calculated to an integral amount 

(rounded up to the next whole NT$) proportionally to the shares held by the 

shareholders. The total amount of the odd lot for less than NT$1 is 

combined in the non-operating income of the company. 

(V) Profit Distribution Table is enclosed (please refer to Annex 4, page 31) 

       

  

Resolutions: 
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V. Discussion 
The amendment to the Company’s “Procedures for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets” is 

presented for discussion. 

Explanation:  

(I) In response to the amendment to “Regulations Governing the Acquisition 

and Disposal of Assets by Public Companies” about strengthening the 

regulatory function on the practice and supervision of related party 

transaction, it is proposed to amend some of the provisions of the 

Company’s “Procedures for the Acquisition and Disposal of Assets”. 

(II) Comparison Table for the Company’s “Procedures for the Acquisition and 

Disposal of Assets” is enclosed. Please refer to Annex 5 (Page 32 - 44 of the 

Agenda Handbook). 

 
Resolutions: 

 
 
 
 
VI. A.O.B 
 
 
 
VII. Adjournment 
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Annex 1 (Business Report) 

The 2022 Business Report 

The consolidated revenue and net operating profit in 2022 climbed 22.97% and 

37.98% respectively from 2021. Due to currency depreciation, the Company incurred a 

foreign exchange gain of NT$1,103,179 thousand in the current year, resulting in an after-

tax EPS NT$42.56. Taking a closer look at the operational performance in 2022, our 

revenue and profit did not decline as a result of the continuous sharp increase in the price 

of raw materials; instead, we managed to achieve both top-line and bottom-line growth 

again, with the growth rate of operating net profit exceeding that of revenue. The record-

breaking performance was a result of the depreciation of the New Taiwan Dollar, an 

increase in customer orders, and the positive effects on sales and profitability generated 

from the launch of new products. The long-planned intelligent plant and production line 

have been officially put into mass production in July 2022. Although the operational 

performance so far in 2023 has been affected by customers’ excess inventory resulted 

from the over-purchasing in 2022, with the continuous introduction of new products, we 

believe the future growth prospect is still promising and we expect to bring a better 

operational performance to shareholders in the near future. The 2022 business 

performance is explained as follows 

I. Business plan implementation results: 

Unit: NT$ Thousand 

Item 2022 2021 
Increase or 

decrease in amount 

Change in 

ratio (%) 

Operating revenue 7,798,631 6,341,989 1,456,642 22.97 

Profit from operations 3,752,672 2,719,682 1,032,990 37.98 

Net profit 4,056,145 2,072,520 1,983,625 95.71 

II. Implementation of budget: The 2022 financial forecast was not disclosed, so there is no 
budget achievement. 

 

III. Financial revenue and expense and profitability analysis 

Item 2022 2021 

Financial 
structure (%) 

Ratio of liabilities to assets 18.70 18.33 

Ratio of long term funding to property, 

plants, and equipment 

584.12 562.33 
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Item 2022 2021 

Solvency (%) Current ratio 786.61 723.46 

Quick ratio 738.28 666.72 

Times interest earned ratio 501.27 266.06 

Profitability 
(%) 

Ratio of return on total assets 23.44 14.44 

Ratio of return on shareholders’ equity 28.72 17.47 

Ratio of profit before income tax to 

paid-in capital 

532.36 272.38 

Profit ratio 52.01 32.67 

Earnings per share (NT$) 42.56 21.75 

IV. Research development status 

The company’s R&D expenditure in 2022 was NT233,250 thousand; the main development 

status is as follows: 

(1) In response to the planning of the new generation products, R&D continues to develop 

new slide rail kit products to be applied in standard and open rack cabinets, or other special 

cabinets. In order to create more diversified, efficient, and high-tech products under the 

restriction of limited spaces, R&D carries out in-depth analysis and analytics on new 

products specifications by studying as many aspects of the products as possible and 

throughout all the stages, from early design to the end-user markets. The goal is to 

consolidate and evaluate product functionality, convenience, and safety. This is also the 

major policy and direction for the future product development so as to develop suitable  

green products for the numerous applications in the 3C products market. 

(2) Regarding the channel market, high-end slide rails, and hinges, since series of products 

have already been developed, the Company is currently gathering more application 

insights for the existing standard products in order to build a more comprehensive product 

line to meet the demands of the new modern styles. Meanwhile, we actively use the insights 

collected to develop products with functional features of convenience and safety that 

appeal to users. This will also enhance the Company’s competitiveness and value in the 

markets for high-end kitchen, office cabinets, toolbox, medical care, and smart home or 

home automation. In response to higher production needs, we have actively developed and 

introduced the more advanced automated and intelligent manufacturing equipment to 

achieve smart production, thereby enabling the Company to create a low-cost and high-

efficiency, and high-quality production conditions for all of its products. 
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V. Management strategy 

In line with the continuous recruitment and training of management, marketing, and 

R&D talents as the long-term business policy, the Company is committed to strengthening 

the management team and talents to become the most important assets. Other important 

principles are as follows: 

1. The complete R&D and industrial layout of the RAIL KIT product line developed in line 

with cloud computing requirements; 

2. The complete R&D and industrial layout of the kitchen Rail Kit product line for 

household consumption needs; 

3. The complete R&D and industrial layout of the consumer product line for personal 

consumption needs; 

4. The introduction of intelligent production technology to improve business management 

performance; 

5. The establishment of global flexible production bases to meet the needs of customers in 

different markets; 

Since its establishment, the Company has continuously strengthened its 

competitiveness by actively innovating and pursuing transformation. When facing the 

treacherous and ever-changing environment, the company still handles it with a more 

cautious and conservative attitude. In addition to strictly implementing the cost saving and 

expense cutting strategy, the Company has invested more capital and resources to expand 

the markets in different industries, create more promotion to increase the popularity of the 

“King Slide” brand, and expand distribution channels globally. Besides, in response to the 

geopolitical risks, the Company actively seeks to establish production bases or 

collaborative partnership in different areas and puts sustainable development goals into 

practice by implementing solid ESG strategy in order to achieve better business 

performance in the future. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Chairman: Lin Tsung-Chi  President: Lin Shu-Chen  Chief Accountant: Chen Yi-Nian



- 12 - 

 

Annex 2 (Supervisor’s Review Report) 
 
 
 

King Slide Works Co., Ltd. 

Audit Committee’s Review Report 

 

  The Company’s Board of Directors prepared and presented the 2022 individual 

financial statements, consolidated financial statements, business report, and earnings 

distribution proposal. The 2022 financial statements and consolidated financial 

statements were audited by CPA Chen-Li Chen and CPA Chia-Ling Chiang of 

Deloitte & Touche Taiwan with unmodified opinion for the parent and unmodified 

opinion with emphasis of matter paragraph for the consolidated issued in the 

independent auditor’s report. The aforementioned accounting statements were 

reviewed and verified by the supervisors with an Audit Committee’s review report 

prepared and presented in accordance with the provisions of the Securities and 

Exchange Act and the Company Act. 

 

 

To 

The Company’s 2023 Annual Meeting of Shareholders 

       

King Slide Works Co., Ltd. 

              Audit Committee: Hsu Fang-Yih 

                                                                 

 

February 24, 2023 
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Annex 3 (Independent Auditor’s Report –Financial Statements) 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
King Slide Works Co., Ltd. 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of King Slide Works Co., Ltd. (the “Company”), 
which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the statements of comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies (collectively referred to as the “financial 
statements”). 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Company as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and its financial performance and its cash 
flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial 
Reports by Securities Issuers. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of 
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of 
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with The Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of 
China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion 
 
Key Audit Matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022. These matters were addressed in 
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we 
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
 
The key audit matter identified in the Company’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 
2022 is as follows: 
 
Occurrence of revenue from specific customers  
 
The operating revenue of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2022 was NT$2,342,652 
thousand. In addition, based on the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, revenue recognition 
is presumed to have a significant risk. Therefore, we considered the occurrence of revenue from specific 
customers as a key audit matter. 
 
In addition to obtaining an understanding of the internal controls relevant to the recognition of operating 
revenue, we performed the following audit procedures: 
 
1. We understood and tested the operating effectiveness of the internal controls relevant to the revenue 

of the Company. 
 
2. We selected samples and verified the occurrence of recorded revenue against supporting documents, 

including purchase orders, shipping and collection documents, and we checked and confirmed that 
the payer was the same as the buyer. 

 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements  
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Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, 
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the 
Company’s financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the 
Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

 
 2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

 
 3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 
 4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern. 

 
 5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
 6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or 

business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are 
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Corporation audit. We remain 
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solely responsible for our audit opinion. 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022 
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
The engagement partners on the audits resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Chen-Li Chen 
and Chia-Ling Chiang. 
 
 
 
 
Deloitte & Touche 
Taipei, Taiwan 
Republic of China 
 
 
 
February 24, 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notice to Readers 
 
The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted 
in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and 
practices to audit such financial statements are those generally applied in the Republic of China. 
 
For the convenience of  readers,  the independent auditors’ report  and the accompanying 
f inancial  statements  have been translated into English from the original  Chinese version 
prepared and used in the Republic of  China. If  there is  any confl ict  between the English 
version and the original  Chinese version or any dif ference in the interpretation of  the 
two versions,  the Chinese-language independent auditors’ report  and f inancial  
statements shall  prevail .  
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Annex 3 (Independent Auditor’s Report –Balance Sheet) 

KING SLIDE WORKS CO., LTD. 
 
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 
 
 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
ASSETS  Amount  %  Amount  % 
         
CURRENT ASSETS         

Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4 and 6)    $ 2,799,857     17    $ 2,175,284     16 
Financial assets at amortized cost - current (Note 7)     307,170     2     636,594     5 
Notes receivable (Notes 4 and 8)     50,310     -     56,177     - 
Notes receivable - related parties (Notes 8 and 23)     126,772     1     140,150     1 
Accounts receivable, net (Notes 4, 5 and 8)     261,569     2     384,773     3 
Accounts receivable - related parties (Notes 8 and 23)     45,311     -     76,606     1 
Other receivables     6,116     -     7,369     - 
Other receivables - related parties (Note 23)     2,204     -     3,301     - 
Inventories (Notes 4 and 9)     263,025     2     330,094     3 

Other current assets     19,614     -     22,581     - 
         

Total current assets     3,881,948     24     3,832,929     29 
                     
NONCURRENT ASSETS         

Investments accounted for using the equity method (Notes 4 and 10)     11,979,016     73     9,018,001     68 
Property, plant and equipment (Notes 4, 11 and 24)     450,202     3     450,262     3 
Software (Note 4)     850     -     895     - 
Deferred tax assets (Notes 4 and 19)     17,464     -     39,077     - 
Prepayments for equipment (Note 24)     85,500     -     9,500     - 
Refundable deposits     391     -     231     - 

                     
Total noncurrent assets     12,533,423     76     9,517,966     71 

                     
TOTAL    $ 16,415,371     100    $ 13,350,895     100 
         
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY         
         
CURRENT LIABILITIES         

Notes payable (Note 12)    $ 78,695     1    $ 146,049     1 
Notes payable - related parties (Notes 12 and 23)     29,919     -     42,588     1 
Accounts payable (Note 12)     19,083     -     37,844     - 
Accounts payable - related parties (Notes 12 and 23)     18,356     -     24,551     - 
Other payables (Note 13)     387,119     2     299,135     2 
Other payable - related parties (Note 23)     47     -     -     - 
Current tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 19)     149,594     1     103,129     1 
Refund liability - current (Note 14)     5,726     -     3,411     - 
Other current liabilities     14,976     -     9,939     - 

                     
Total current liabilities     703,515     4     666,646     5 

                     
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES         

Deferred tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 19)     57,502     1     47,090     1 
Net defined benefit liabilities (Notes 4 and 15)     16,017     -     33,872     - 

Total noncurrent liabilities     73,519     1     80,962     1 
                     

    Total liabilities     777,034     5     747,608     6 
                     
EQUITY (Note 16)         

Ordinary shares     952,971     6     952,971     7 
Capital surplus     796,691     5     796,691     6 
Retained earnings         

Legal reserve     1,642,442     10     1,435,887     11 
Special reserve     9,302     -     9,219     - 
Unappropriated earnings     12,241,007     74     9,417,821     70 

Total retained earnings     13,892,751     84     10,862,927     81 
Other equity         

Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of          
 foreign operations     (4,076)     -     (9,302)     - 

                     
  Total equity     15,638,337     95     12,603,287     94 

                     
TOTAL    $ 16,415,371     100    $ 13,350,895     100 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Annex 3 (Statements of Comprehensive Income) 

KING SLIDE WORKS CO., LTD. 
 
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share) 
 
  2022  2021 
  Amount  %  Amount  % 
         
OPERATING REVENUE (Notes 4, 14, 17 and 23)    $ 2,342,652     100    $ 2,475,665     100 

                     
OPERATING COSTS (Notes 9, 18 and 23)     1,584,010     67     1,723,865     70 
                     
GROSS PROFIT     758,642     33     751,800     30 
                     
UNREALIZED GAIN ON TRANSACTIONS 

WITH SUBSIDIARIES     (4,278)     -     (3,478)     - 
                     
REALIZED GAIN ON TRANSACTIONS WITH 

SUBSIDIARIES     3,478     -     2,613     - 
                     
REALIZED GROSS PROFIT     757,842     33     750,935     30 
                     
OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 8, 18 and 23)         

Selling and marketing     100,607     4     84,380     3 
General and administrative     126,329     6     104,003     4 
Research and development     117,495     5     112,497     5 
Expected credit loss recognized (reversed)     (458)     -     1,922     - 

                     
Total operating expenses     343,973     15     302,802     12 
                     
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS     413,869     18     448,133     18 
                     

NON-OPERATING INCOME AND 
EXPENSES (Notes 18 and 23)         

Other gains and losses     243,110     10     (20,720)     (1) 
Interest income     35,016     1     5,334     - 

Share of profit of subsidiaries     3,552,063     152     1,743,135     71 
                     

Total non-operating income and expenses     3,830,189     163     1,727,749     70 
                     
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX     4,244,058     181     2,175,882     88 
                     
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Notes 4 and 19)     187,913     8     103,362     4 
                     
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR     4,056,145     173     2,072,520     84 

(Continued) 
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KING SLIDE WORKS CO., LTD. 
 
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share) 
 
 
  2022  2021 
  Amount  %  Amount  % 
         
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 

(Notes 15 and 19)         
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently 

to profit or loss:         
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans    $ 13,139     1    $ (8,716)     (1) 
Income tax relating to items that will not be 

reclassified subsequently to profit or loss     (2,628)     -     1,743     - 
     10,511     1     (6,973)     (1) 

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to 
profit or loss:         
Exchange differences on translating the 

financial statements of foreign operations     6,532     -     (104)     - 
Income tax relating to items that may be 

reclassified subsequently to profit or loss     (1,306)     -     21     - 
     5,226     -     (83)     - 

                     
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net 

of income tax     15,737     1     (7,056)     (1) 
                     
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE 

YEAR    $ 4,071,882     174    $ 2,065,464     83 
 
EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 20)         

Basic    $ 42.56      $ 21.75   
Diluted    $ 41.84      $ 21.55   

 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. (Concluded) 
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Annex 3 (Statements of Changes In Equity) 
KING SLIDE WORKS CO., LTD. 
 
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021   
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 
 
            Exchange    
            Differences on    
            Translation of the    
      Retained Earnings  Financial    
          Unappropriated  Statements of    
  Ordinary Shares  Capital Surplus  Legal Reserve  Special Reserve  Earnings  Foreign Operations  Total Equity 
               
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2021    $ 952,971    $ 796,691    $ 1,319,444    $ 7,670    $ 8,053,484    $ (9,219)    $ 11,121,041 
                                    
Appropriation of 2020 earnings (Note 16)                

Legal reserve            -            -  116,443            -       (116,443)            -            - 
Special reserve             -  1,549     (1,549)             -            - 
Cash dividends distributed by the Company     -     -     -     -     (583,218)     -     (583,218) 
     -     -     116,443     1,549     (701,210)     -     (583,218) 

Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2021     -     -     -     -     2,072,520     -     2,072,520 
                                    
Other comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 

2021, net of income tax     -     -     -     -     (6,973)     (83)     (7,056) 
                                    
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year ended 

December 31, 2021     -     -     -     -     2,065,547     (83)     2,065,464 
                                    
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2021     952,971     796,691     1,435,887     9,219     9,417,821     (9,302)     12,603,287 
                                    
Appropriation of 2021 earnings (Note 16)               

Legal reserve     -     -     206,555     -     (206,555)     -     - 
Special reserve     -     -     -     83     (83)     -     - 
Cash dividends distributed by the Company     -     -     -     -     (1,036,832)     -     (1,036,832) 

     -     -     206,555     83     (1,243,470)     -     (1,036,832) 
Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2022     -     -     -     -     4,056,145     -     4,056,145 
                                    
Other comprehensive income for the year ended December 

31, 2022, net of income tax     -     -     -     -     10,511     5,226     15,737 
                                    
Total comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 

2022     -     -     -     -     4,066,656     5,226     4,071,882 
                                    
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2022    $ 952,971    $ 796,691    $ 1,642,442    $ 9,302    $ 12,241,007    $ (4,076)    $ 15,638,337 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Annex 3 (Statements of Cash Flows) 

KING SLIDE WORKS CO., LTD. 
 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

  2022  2021 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

Profit before income tax    $ 4,244,058    $ 2,175,882 
Adjustments for:     

Depreciation expenses     39,329     38,101 
Amortization expenses     759     1,421 
Expected credit loss recognized (reversed)     (458)     1,922 
Recognition of refund liabilities     2,765     18 
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net     (194)     (4,232) 
Interest income     (35,016)     (5,334) 
Share of profit of subsidiaries     (3,552,063)     (1,743,135) 
Write-downs of inventories     14,327     3,666 
Unrealized gain on transactions with subsidiaries     4,278     3,478 
Realized gain on transactions with subsidiaries     (3,478)     (2,613) 
Net gain on foreign currency exchange     (136,725)     (27,212) 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities     

Notes receivable     5,867     (8,519) 
Notes receivable - related parties     13,378     (60,705) 
Accounts receivable     123,662     (121,202) 
Accounts receivable - related parties     31,295     (28,499) 
Other receivables     6,732     (5,642) 
Other receivables - related parties     1,097     (2,224) 
Inventories     52,742     (165,384) 
Other current assets     2,967     (7,271) 
Notes payable     (57,208)     28,970 
Notes payable - related parties     (12,669)     20,070 
Accounts payable     (18,761)     4,276 
Accounts payable - related parties     (6,195)     4,058 
Other payables     96,686     48,818 
Other payables - related parties     47     (260) 
Provisions     (450)     - 
Other current liabilities     5,037     3,864 
Net defined benefit liabilities     (6,725)     (4,640) 

Cash generated from operations     815,084     147,672 
Interest received     29,537     5,204 
Dividend income     596,780     869,650 
Income tax paid     (113,357)     (86,623) 

           
Net cash generated from operating activities      1,328,044     935,903 

           
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

Purchase of financial assets at amortized cost     (307,170)     (636,594) 
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at amortized cost     636,594     - 
Payments for property, plant and equipment     (132,362)     (64,631) 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment     448     4,472 
Decrease (increase) in refundable deposits     (160)     50 

(Continued) 
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KING SLIDE WORKS CO., LTD. 
 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

  2022  2021 
     

Payments for intangible assets    $ (714)    $ (270) 
           

Net cash generated from (used in) investing activities     196,636     (696,973) 
     

CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES     
Cash dividends     (1,036,832)     (583,218) 

           
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON THE 

BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HELD IN 
FOREIGN CURRENCIES  

 

   136,725     27,212 
           
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 

EQUIVALENTS 
 
   624,573     (317,076) 

           
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF 

THE YEAR 
 
   2,175,284     2,492,360 

           
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE 

YEAR  
 
  $ 2,799,857    $ 2,175,284 

 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. (Concluded) 
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Annex 3 (Independent Auditor’s Report - Consolidated Financial Statements) 
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT  
King Slide Works Co., Ltd. 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of King Slide Works Co., Ltd. (the 
“Company”) and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 
2022 and 2021, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash 
flows for the years then ended, and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial 
statements”). 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the consolidated financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2022 and 
2021, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended 
in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers 
and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards (IAS), 
IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC) endorsed and issued into effect by the 
Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC) of the Republic of China. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of 
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of 
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company and its subsidiaries in accordance with The Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public 
Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters  
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
 
The key audit matter identified in the Company and its subsidiaries’ consolidated financial statements for 
the year ended December 31, 2022 is as follows: 
 
Occurrence of revenue from specific customers 
 
The operating revenue of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2022 was 
NT$7,798,631 thousand, which had increased by 23% compared with the previous year. In addition, 
based on the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, revenue recognition is presumed to have a 
significant risk. Therefore, we considered the occurrence of revenue from specific customers as a key 
audit matter. 
 
In addition to obtaining an understanding of the internal controls relevant to the recognition of operating 
revenue, we performed the following audit procedures: 
 
1. We understood and tested the operating effectiveness of the internal controls relevant to the revenue 

of the Company and its subsidiaries. 
 
2. We selected samples and verified the occurrence of recorded revenue against supporting documents, 
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including purchase orders, shipping and collection documents, and we checked and confirmed that 
the payer was the same as the buyer. 

 
Other Matter 
 
We have also audited the parent company only financial statements of King Slide Works Co., Ltd. as of 
and for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 on which we have issued an unmodified opinion. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements  
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by 
Securities Issuers and IFRS, IAS, IFRIC, and SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC, and for 
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company 
and its subsidiaries’ ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company and its subsidiaries’ or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 
so. 
 
Those charged with governance, including the audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the 
Company and its subsidiaries’ financial reporting process. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements   
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect 
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 
  
As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

 
2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company and its subsidiaries’ internal control. 

 
3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 
4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company and its subsidiaries’ ability to continue as 
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in 
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our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company and its subsidiaries to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 
5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
6. Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of entities or 

business activities within the Company and its subsidiaries to express an opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of the group 
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication. 
 
  
The engagement partners on the audits resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Chen-Li Chen 
and Chia-Ling Chiang. 
 
 
 
Deloitte & Touche 
Taipei, Taiwan 
Republic of China 
 
February 24, 2023 

Notice to Readers 
 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated 
financial position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows in accordance with 
accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any 
other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial 
statements are those generally applied in the Republic of China.  
 
For the convenience of readers, the independent auditors’ report and the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese version prepared and 
used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between the English version and the original 
Chinese version or any difference in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese-language 
independent auditors’ report and consolidated financial statements shall prevail. 
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Annex 3 (Independent Auditor’s Report –Consolidated Balance Sheet) 

KING SLIDE WORKS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 
 
  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
ASSETS  Amount  %  Amount  % 
         
CURRENT ASSETS         

Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4 and 6)    $ 11,592,473     60    $ 7,926,374     51 
Financial assets at amortized cost - current (Note 7)     1,105,812     6     1,494,612     10 
Notes receivable (Notes 4 and 8)     58,382     1     66,868     1 
Accounts receivable, net (Notes 4, 5 and 8)     1,766,291     9     1,665,934     11 
Other receivables     41,536     -     41,110     - 
Inventories (Notes 4 and 9)     919,754     5     925,619     6 

Other current assets     35,507     -     30,881     - 
                     
Total current assets     15,519,755     81     12,151,398     79 
         

NONCURRENT ASSETS         
Property, plant and equipment (Notes 4, 11 and 26)     2,955,395     15     2,445,722     16 
Right-of-use assets (Notes 4 and 12)     622,098     3     624,881     4 
Software (Note 4)     2,319     -     3,405     - 
Deferred tax assets (Notes 4 and 21)     29,534     -     143,991     1 
Prepayments for equipment (Note 26)     104,143     1     61,546     - 
Refundable deposits     2,969     -     1,925     - 

                     
Total noncurrent assets     3,716,458     19     3,281,470     21 

                     
TOTAL    $ 19,236,213     100    $ 15,432,868     100 
         
         
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY         
         
CURRENT LIABILITIES         

Notes payable (Note 14)    $ 341,292     2    $ 443,983     3 
Accounts payable (Note 14)     87,241     1     122,577     1 
Other payables (Note 15)     825,788     4     656,952     4 
Current tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 21)     628,249     3     385,127     3 
Lease liabilities - current (Notes 4 and 12)     35,771     -     33,298     - 
Refund liability - current (Note 16)     23,110     -     20,718     - 
Other current liabilities     31,525     -     16,963     - 

                     
Total current liabilities     1,972,976     10     1,679,618     11 

                     
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES         

Long-term borrowings (Note 13)     894,538     5    452,357     3 
Deferred tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 21)     89,498     1     47,090     - 
Lease liabilities - noncurrent (Notes 4 and 12)     604,908     3     606,048     4 
Net defined benefit liabilities (Notes 4 and 17)     16,017     -     33,872     - 
Deferred revenue - noncurrent (Notes 4 and 13)     19,939     -     10,596     - 

                     
Total noncurrent liabilities     1,624,900     9     1,149,963     7 

                     
    Total liabilities     3,597,876     19     2,829,581     18 

                     
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (Note 18)         

Ordinary shares     952,971     5     952,971     6 
Capital surplus     796,691     4     796,691     5 
Retained earnings         

Legal reserve     1,642,442     8     1,435,887     10 
Special reserve     9,302     -     9,219     - 
Unappropriated earnings     12,241,007     64     9,417,821     61 

Total retained earnings     13,892,751     72     10,862,927     71 
Other equity         

Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of foreign operations     (4,076)     -     (9,302)     - 
                     

  Total equity     15,638,337     81     12,603,287     82 
                     
TOTAL    $ 19,236,213     100    $ 15,432,868     100 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 
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Annex 3 (Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income) 
KING SLIDE WORKS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share) 
  2022  2021 
  Amount  %  Amount  % 
         
OPERATING REVENUE (Notes 4, 16 and 19)    $ 7,798,631     100    $ 6,341,989     100 
                     
OPERATING COSTS (Notes 9 and 20)     3,332,655     43     2,987,157     47 
                     
GROSS PROFIT     4,465,976     57     3,354,832     53 
                     
OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 8 and 20)         

Selling and marketing     220,890     3     178,711     3 
General and administrative     253,190     3     206,841     3 
Research and development     233,250     3     234,628     4 
Expected credit loss     5,974     -     14,970     - 

                     
Total operating expenses     713,304     9     635,150     10 

                     
PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS     3,752,672     48     2,719,682     43 
                     
NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES 

(Note 20)         
Interest income     168,943     2     20,066     - 
Other gains and losses     1,161,814     15     (134,173)     (2) 
Finance costs     (10,141)     -     (9,793)     - 

                     
Total non-operating income and expenses     1,320,616     17     (123,900)     (2) 

                     
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX     2,595,782     41     1,542,145     32 
                     
INCOME TAX (Notes 4 and 21)     523,262     8     377,556     8 
                     
NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR     2,072,520     33     1,164,589     24 
                     
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 

(Notes 17 and 21)         
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently 

to profit or loss:         
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans     13,139     -     (8,716)     - 
Income tax relating to items that will not be 

reclassified subsequently to profit or loss     (2,628)     -     1,743     - 
     10,511     -     (6,973)     - 

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to 
profit or loss:         
Exchange differences on translating the 

financial statements of foreign operations     6,532     -     (104)     - 

(Continued) 



 
- 27 -

KING SLIDE WORKS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 

 (In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share) 

 

 
  2022  2021 
  Amount  %  Amount  % 
         

Income tax relating to items that may be 
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss    $ (1,306)     -    $ 21     - 
     5,226     -     (83)     - 

                     
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net 

of income tax     15,737     -     (7,056)     - 
                     
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE 

YEAR    $ 4,071,882     52    $ 2,065,464     33 
                     
NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO:         

Owners of the Company    $ 4,056,145     52    $ 2,072,520     33 
                     
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:         
Owners of the Company    $ 4,071,882     52    $ 2,065,464     33 

 
EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 22)         

Basic    $ 42.56      $ 21.75   
Diluted    $ 41.84      $ 21.55   

 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial 

statements. (Concluded) 
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Annex 3 (Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity) 
 

KING SLIDE WORKS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021  
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 
 
 
            Exchange   
            Differences on   
            Translation of the    
            Financial    
      Retained Earnings  Statements of    
          Unappropriated  Foreign   
  Ordinary Shares  Capital Surplus  Legal Reserve  Special Reserve  Earnings  Operations  Total Equity 
               
BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2021    $ 952,971    $ 796,691    $ 1,319,444    $ 7,670    $ 8,053,484    $ (9,219)    $ 11,121,041 
                                    
Appropriation of 2020 earnings (Note 18)               

Legal reserve     -     -     116,443     -     (116,443)     -     - 
Special reserve     -     -     -     1,549     (1,549)     -     - 
Cash dividends distributed by the Company     -     -     -     -     (583,218)     -     (583,218) 
                                    

     -     -     116,443     1,549     (701,210)     -     (583,218) 
                                    
Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2021     -     -     -     -     1,164,589     -     1,164,589 
                                    
Other comprehensive loss for the year ended December 31, 

2021, net of income tax     -     -     -     -     (159)     (1,549)     (1,708) 
               
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year ended 

December 31, 2021     -     -     -     -     2,065,547     (83)     2,065,464 
                                    
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2021     952,971     796,691     1,435,887     9,219     9,417,821     (9,302)     12,603,287 
                                    
Appropriation of 2021 earnings (Note 18)               

Legal reserve     -     -     206,555     -     (206,555)     -     - 
Special reserve     -     -     -     83     (83)     -     - 
Cash dividends distributed by the Company     -     -     -     -     (1,036,832)     -     (1,036,832) 

                                    
     -     -     206,555     83     (1,243,470)     -     (1,036,832) 

                                    
Net profit for the year ended December 31, 2022     -     -     -     -     4,056,145     -     4,056,145 
                                    
Other comprehensive income for the year ended December 

31, 2022, net of income tax     -     -     -     -     10,511     5,226     15,737 
                                    
Total comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 

2022     -     -     -     -     4,066,656     5,226     4,071,882 
                                    
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2022    $ 952,971    $ 796,691    $ 1,642,442    $ 9,302    $ 12,241,007    $ (4,076)    $ 15,638,337 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Annex 3 (Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows) 

KING SLIDE WORKS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

  2022  2021 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

Profit before income tax    $ 5,073,288    $ 2,595,782 
Adjustments for:     

Depreciation expenses     222,649     212,418 
Amortization expenses     1,800     1,995 
Expected credit loss     5,974     14,970 
Finance costs     10,141     9,793 
Recognition of refund liabilities     5,939     4,274 
Interest income     (168,943)     (20,066) 
Write-downs of inventories     23,035     3,240 
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net     (197)     (4,578) 
Net loss (gain) on foreign currency exchange     (784,033)     21,556 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities     

Notes receivable     8,486     (9,745) 
Accounts receivable     (106,331)     (659,030) 
Other receivables     24,560     (10,735) 
Inventories     (17,170)     (464,770) 
Other current assets     (4,626)     (9,833) 
Notes payable     (58,916)     107,052 
Accounts payable     (35,336)     29,958 
Other payables     225,455     112,749 
Refund liabilities     (3,547)     - 
Other current liabilities     14,562     (446) 
Net defined benefit liabilities     (6,725)     (4,640) 

Cash generated from operations     4,430,065     1,929,944 
Interest received     143,957     19,694 
Interest paid     (14,629)     (11,761) 
Income tax paid     (621,090)     (419,636) 

Income tax paid     
           

Net cash generated from operating activities     3,938,303     1,518,241 
           
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

Purchase of financial assets at amortized cost     (1,105,812)     (1,494,612) 
Proceeds from sale of financial assets ate amortized cost     1,494,612     - 
Payments for property, plant and equipment     (824,076)     (767,674) 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment     689     5,016 
Increase in refundable deposits     (1,044)     (1,011) 
Payments for intangible assets     (714)     (2,590) 

           
Net cash used in investing activities     (436,345)     (2,260,871) 
           
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

Proceeds from long-term borrowings     448,040     256,900 
Repayment of the principal portion of lease liabilities     (35,201)     (32,766) 

(Continued) 
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KING SLIDE WORKS CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 
 (In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 
 
 

  2022  2021 
     

Cash dividends    $ (1,036,832)    $ (583,218) 
     

Net cash used in financing activities     (623,993)     (359,084) 
     
EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON THE 

BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HELD IN 
FOREIGN CURRENCIES 

 

   788,134     (22,001) 
           
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 

EQUIVALENTS 
 
   3,666,099     (1,123,715) 

           
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF 

THE YEAR 
 
   7,926,374     9,050,089 

           
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE 

YEAR 
 
  $11,592,473    $ 7,926,374 

 
 
 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. (Concluded) 
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 Annex 4 (Earnings Distribution Statement) 
 
 

 

King Slide Works Co., Ltd. 

Profit Distribution Table 
January 1 – December 31, 2022 

Unit: NTD 

Item  Amount  

Beginning retained earnings  8,174,350,431 

    Defined benefit plan re-measurement amount recognized in the 

retained earnings 

    10,511,395 

Adjusted beginning retained earnings 8,184,861,826 

Add: Net income after tax  4,056,145,256 

Less: legal reserve       406,665,665 

Add: Reversed special reserve 3,081,246 

Distributable earnings 11,837,422,663 

Planned earnings distribution  

Less: Dividend to shareholders (cash dividend NT$20 per share)    1,905,941,440 

    

Unappropriated retained earnings   9,931,481,223 

  

Note: 1. The Company’s profit distribution is based on the most recent annual earnings. 

2. The ex-dividend date and the issuance date of the cash dividend are to be scheduled 

separately by the Board of Directors with the resolution of the shareholders meeting. 

 

   

 

  

Chairman: Lin Tsung-Chi   President: Lin Shu-Chen  Chief Accountant: Chen Yi-Nian  
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Annex 5（Procedures for Acquisition and Disposal of Assets amendment Comparison Table） 

King Slide Works Co., Ltd. 

Procedures for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets amendment made before and after 

Clause 

No. 

Current Clause Clause No. after amendment Reason for 

amendment 

Article 3 Appraisal procedures 

(I) When the Company obtains or disposes 

of securities investments or engages in 

the trading of financial derivatives, the 

Finance and Accounting Department 

shall conduct the relevant benefit 

analysis and assess possible risks. For 

the acquisition and disposal of real 

property and other assets, each unit 

shall formulate capital expenditure 

plans in advance to initiate a feasibility 

assessment on the purpose and 

expected benefit from the acquisition 

and disposal of assets. If the real 

property is obtained from a related 

party, the reasonableness of trading 

conditions shall be assessed in 

accordance with the provisions of 

Chapter 2 of the Procedures. 

(II) For the acquisition and disposal of 

securities, the Company shall obtain 

the financial statements of the target 

company that have recently been 

certified or reviewed by the 

accountants for reference in evaluating 

the transaction price before the date of 

occurrence. In addition, for the 

transaction amount reaching 20% of 

the Company’s paid-in capital or 

NT$300 million or more, the 

accountants should be consulted 

before the date of occurrence to 

express an opinion on the 

reasonableness of the transaction 

price. If the accountants need to use a 

report by an expert, it shall be handled 

in accordance with the provisions of 

Statement of Auditing Standard No. 

20 issued by the Accounting Research 

and Development Foundation. 

However, securities with an available 

Appraisal procedures 

(I) When the Company obtains or disposes 

of securities investments or engages in 

the trading of financial derivatives, the 

Finance and Accounting Department 

shall conduct the relevant benefit 

analysis and assess possible risks. For 

the acquisition and disposal of real 

property and other assets, each unit 

shall formulate capital expenditure 

plans in advance to initiate a feasibility 

assessment on the purpose and 

expected benefit from the acquisition 

and disposal of assets. If the real 

property is obtained from a related 

party, the reasonableness of trading 

conditions shall be assessed in 

accordance with the provisions of 

Chapter 2 of the Procedures. 

(II) For the acquisition and disposal of 

securities, the Company shall obtain 

the financial statements of the target 

company that have recently been 

certified or reviewed by the 

accountants for reference in evaluating 

the transaction price before the date of 

occurrence. In addition, for the 

transaction amount reaching  20% of 

the Company’s paid-in capital or 

NT$300 million or more, the 

accountants should be consulted 

before the date of occurrence to 

express an opinion on the 

reasonableness of the transaction 

price. However, securities with an 

available market price or otherwise 

provided by competent securities 

authorities are not subject to such 

requirement. 

 

 

In accordance 

with the 

Regulations 

Governing the 

Acquisition 

and Disposal of 

Assets by 

Public 

Companies. 
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Clause 

No. 

Current Clause Clause No. after amendment Reason for 

amendment 

market price or otherwise provided by 

competent securities authorities are 

not subject to such requirement. 

(III) In acquiring or disposing of 

memberships or intangible assets 

thereof where the transaction amount 

reaches 20% of the company’s paid-in 

capital or NT$300 million or more, 

unless transacting with a government 

agency, an accountant shall be 

engaged to render an opinion on the 

reasonableness of the transaction price 

before the date of the occurrence in 

accordance with the provisions of  

Statement of Auditing Standards No. 

20 published by the  Accounting 

Research and Development 

Foundation (ARDF). 

(IV) The acquisition and disposal of real 

property, equipment, or right-of-use 

assets, if any, should be handled in 

accordance with the provisions of 

Article 6 of the Procedures. 

(V) The Company, while handling the 

merger, division, acquisition, or 

transfer of shares, shall engage an 

accountant, attorney, or securities 

underwriter to express opinions on the 

reasonableness of the conversion ratio, 

the purchase price, and the cash or 

other property distributed to the 

shareholders before a board meeting is 

convened, and then present it to the 

board of directors for discussion and 

resolution. 

(VI) The price determination methods and 

references for the Company’s 

acquisition and disposal of assets, in 

addition to the opinions of 

professional experts, accountants, and 

other relevant experts as stated in the 

preceding paragraph, shall be handled 

as follows: 

1. Securities acquired or disposed of 

that have been traded in the stock 

 

 

 

 

(III) In acquiring or disposing of 

memberships or intangible assets 

thereof where the transaction amount 

reaches 20% of the company’s paid-in 

capital or NT$300 million or more, 

unless transacting with a government 

agency, an accountant shall be 

engaged to render an opinion on the 

reasonableness of the transaction price 

before the date of the occurrence 

 

 

 

 

(IV) The acquisition and disposal of real 

property, equipment, or right-of-use 

assets, if any, should be handled in 

accordance with the provisions of 

Article 6 of the Procedures.  

(V) The Company, while handling the 

merger, division, acquisition, or 

transfer of shares, shall engage an 

accountant, attorney, or securities 

underwriter to express opinions on the 

reasonableness of the conversion ratio, 

the purchase price, and the cash or 

other property distributed to the 

shareholders before a board meeting is 

convened, and then present it to the 

board of directors for discussion and 

resolution. 

(VI) The price determination methods and 

references for the Company’s 

acquisition and disposal of assets, in 

addition to the opinions of 

professional experts, accountants, and 

other relevant experts as stated in the 

preceding paragraph, shall be handled 

as follows: 

1. Securities acquired or disposed of 

that have been traded in the stock 
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Clause 

No. 

Current Clause Clause No. after amendment Reason for 

amendment 

exchange market or TPEx should be 

determined according to the current 

equity or bond price. 

2. Securities acquired or disposed of 

that are not traded in the stock 

exchange market or TPEx should be 

priced with the net worth per share, 

technology and profitability, future 

development potential, market 

interest rate, bond coupon rate, 

debtor’s credit, and transaction price 

at the time taking into account. 

3. To obtain or dispose of the 

membership card, it is necessary to 

consider the benefits that can be 

generated and refer to the transaction 

price at the time. For the acquisition 

and disposal of patents, copyrights, 

trademarks, franchise rights, and 

other intangible assets, it is necessary 

to refer to international or market 

practices, useful lives, and the impact 

on the company’s technology and 

business. 

4. The acquisition and disposal of real 

property and equipment shall be 

determined by referring to the 

announced present value, the assessed 

present value, the actual transaction 

price or book value of the adjacent 

real property, or the quotation of the 

suppliers. If the real property is 

acquired from a related party, it 

should be calculated according to the 

methods specified in Chapter 2 of the 

Procedures in order to assess whether 

the transaction price is reasonable or 

not. 

5. The trading of financial derivatives 

should take into account the trading 

conditions of the futures market, 

exchange rates, and the trend of 

interest rate. 

6. The merger, division, acquisition or 

transfer of shares shall take into 

exchange market or TPEx should be 

determined according to the current 

equity or bond price. 

2. Securities acquired or disposed of 

that are not traded in the stock 

exchange market or TPEx should be 

priced with the net worth per share, 

technology and profitability, future 

development potential, market 

interest rate, bond coupon rate, 

debtor’s credit, and transaction price 

at the time taking into account. 

3. To obtain or dispose of the 

membership card, it is necessary to 

consider the benefits that can be 

generated and refer to the transaction 

price at the time. For the acquisition 

and disposal of patents, copyrights, 

trademarks, franchise rights, and 

other intangible assets, it is necessary 

to refer to international or market 

practices, useful lives, and the impact 

on the company’s technology and 

business. 

The acquisition and disposal of real 

property, equipment, or right-of-use 

assets shall be determined by 

referring to the announced present 

value, the assessed present value, the 

actual transaction price or book value 

of the adjacent real property, or the 

quotation of the suppliers. If the real 

property is acquired from a related 

party, it should be calculated 

according to the methods specified in 

Chapter 2 of the Procedures in order 

to assess whether the transaction price 

is reasonable or not. 

5. The trading of financial derivatives 

should take into account the trading 

conditions of the futures market, 

exchange rates, and the trend of 

interest rate. 

6. The merger, division, acquisition or 

transfer of shares shall take into 
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Clause 

No. 

Current Clause Clause No. after amendment Reason for 

amendment 

account the nature of its business, net 

value per share, asset value, 

technology and profitability, 

production capacity, and future 

growth potential. 

account the nature of its business, net 

value per share, asset value, 

technology and profitability, 

production capacity, and future 

growth potential. 

Article 5 Public announcement and filing 

procedures 

(I) Under any of the following 

circumstances, the Company 

acquiring or disposing of assets shall 

publicly announce and file the relevant 

information on the FSC’s designated 

website in the appropriate format as 

prescribed by the regulations within 2 

days counting inclusively from the 

date of the event: 

1. Acquisition and disposal of real 

property or right-of-use assets 

thereof from or to a related party, or 

acquisition and disposal of assets 

other than real property or right-of-

use assets thereof from or to a related 

party where the transaction amount 

reaches 20% or more of paid-in 

capital, 10% or more of total assets, 

or NT$300 million or more. 

Provided, this shall not apply to 

trading of domestic government 

bonds or bonds under repurchase 

and resale agreements, or 

subscription or redemption of 

money market funds issued by 

domestic securities investment trust 

enterprises. 

2. Mergers, demergers, acquisitions, 

and transfer of shares. 

3. Losses from the trading of financial 

derivatives reaching the limits on 

aggregate losses or losses on 

individual contracts stipulated 

according to paragraph 1, Article 8, 

Chapter 4 of the Procedures. 

4. Where equipment or right-of-use 

assets are acquired and disposed of 

thereof for business use, the 

Public announcement and filing 

procedures 

(I) Under any of the following 

circumstances, the Company 

acquiring or disposing of assets shall 

publicly announce and file the relevant 

information on the FSC’s designated 

website in the appropriate format as 

prescribed by the regulations within 2 

days counting inclusively from the 

date of the event: 

1. Acquisition and disposal of real 

property or right-of-use assets 

thereof from or to a related party, or 

acquisition and disposal of assets 

other than real property or right-of-

use assets thereof from or to a related 

party where the transaction amount 

reaches 20% or more of paid-in 

capital, 10% or more of total assets, 

or NT$300 million or more. 

Provided, this shall not apply to 

trading of domestic government 

bonds or bonds under repurchase 

and resale agreements, or 

subscription or redemption of money 

market funds issued by domestic 

securities investment trust 

enterprises. 

2. Mergers, demergers, acquisitions, 

and transfer of shares. 

3. Losses from the trading of financial 

derivatives reaching the limits on 

aggregate losses or losses on 

individual contracts stipulated 

according to paragraph 1, Article 8, 

Chapter 4 of the Procedures. 

4. Where equipment or right-of-use 

assets are acquired and disposed of 

thereof for business use, the 

The buying and 

selling of 

foreign 

government 

bonds with a 

ratings that is 

not lower than 

the sovereign 

rating of 

Taiwan can be 

allowed and 

exempted from 

public 

disclosure. 
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Clause 

No. 

Current Clause Clause No. after amendment Reason for 

amendment 

transaction counterparty is not a 

related party, and the transaction 

amount exceeds NT$500 million. 

5. Where land is acquired under an 

arrangement on engaging others to 

build on the company’s own land, 

engaging others to build on rented 

land, joint construction and 

allocation of housing units, joint 

construction and allocation of 

ownership percentages, or joint 

construction and separate sale, and 

the transaction counterparty is not a 

related party. Also, the amount the 

company expects to invest in the 

transaction reaches NT$500 million 

or more. 

6. Where an asset transaction other 

than any of those referred to in the 

preceding five subparagraphs or 

Mainland China area investment is 

for an amount reaching 20% of the 

company’s paid-in capital or 

NT$300 million or more, such as the 

cumulative transaction amount of 

acquisitions and disposals of the 

same type of underlying asset with 

the same transaction counterparty 

within the preceding year. The 

cumulative transaction amount of 

acquisitions and disposals 

(cumulative acquisitions and 

disposals, respectively) of real 

property thereof within the same 

development project within the 

preceding year, or the cumulative 

transaction amount of acquisitions 

and disposals (cumulative 

acquisitions and disposals, 

respectively) of the same security 

within the preceding year. “Within 

the preceding year” refers to the year 

preceding the date of occurrence of 

the current transaction”. Items that 

are duly announced in accordance 

transaction counterparty is not a 

related party, and the transaction 

amount exceeds NT$500 million. 

5. Where land is acquired under an 

arrangement on engaging others to 

build on the company’s own land, 

engaging others to build on rented 

land, joint construction and 

allocation of housing units, joint 

construction and allocation of 

ownership percentages, or joint 

construction and separate sale, and 

the transaction counterparty is not a 

related party. Also, the amount the 

company expects to invest in the 

transaction reaches NT$500 million 

or more. 

6. Where an asset transaction other 

than any of those referred to in the 

preceding five subparagraphs or 

Mainland China area investment is 

for an amount reaching 20% of the 

company’s paid-in capital or 

NT$300 million or more, such as the 

cumulative transaction amount of 

acquisitions and disposals of the 

same type of underlying asset with 

the same transaction counterparty 

within the preceding year. The 

cumulative transaction amount of 

acquisitions and disposals 

(cumulative acquisitions and 

disposals, respectively) of real 

property thereof within the same 

development project within the 

preceding year, or the cumulative 

transaction amount of acquisitions 

and disposals (cumulative 

acquisitions and disposals, 

respectively) of the same security 

within the preceding year. “Within 

the preceding year” refers to the year 

preceding the date of occurrence of 

the current transaction”. Items that 

are duly announced in accordance 
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Clause 

No. 

Current Clause Clause No. after amendment Reason for 

amendment 

with the “Regulations Governing the 

Acquisition and Disposal of Assets 

by Public Companies” and 

supported with an appraisal reported 

issued by the professional appraisers 

or the opinions of an accountant 

need not be counted toward the 

transaction amount. Provided, this 

shall not apply to the following 

circumstances: 

(1) Trading of government bonds; 

 

 

 

 

     (2) Trading of bonds under 

repurchase and resale agreements, 

       or subscription or redemption of 

money market funds issued by 

domestic securities investment 

trust enterprises; 

(II) The Company shall compile monthly 

reports on the status of the trading of 

financial derivatives engaged in up to 

the end of the preceding month by the 

Company and any subsidiaries that are 

not domestic public companies and 

enter the information in the prescribed 

format into the information reporting 

website designated by the FSC before 

the 10th day of each month. 

(III) When a public announcement is made 

with an error or omission in an item 

required by regulations to be publicly 

announced and it is required to correct 

it, all the items shall be publicly 

announced again and filed in their 

entirety within two days counting 

inclusively from the date of knowing 

of such error or omission. 

(IV) For the transactions announced and 

filed according to the provision of (I), 

under any of the following 

circumstances, it is necessary to 

publicly announce and file the relevant 

with the “Regulations Governing the 

Acquisition and Disposal of Assets 

by Public Companies” and 

supported with an appraisal reported 

issued by the professional appraisers 

or the opinions of an accountant 

need not be counted toward the 

transaction amount. Provided, this 

shall not apply to the following 

circumstances: 

(1)Trading of domestic 

government bonds or foreign 

government bonds with a rating 

that is not lower than the 

sovereign rating of Taiwan 

     (2) Trading of bonds under 

repurchase and resale agreements, 

       or subscription or redemption of 

money market funds issued by 

domestic securities investment 

trust enterprises; 

(II) The Company shall compile monthly 

reports on the status of the trading of 

financial derivatives engaged in up to 

the end of the preceding month by the 

Company and any subsidiaries that are 

not domestic public companies and 

enter the information in the prescribed 

format into the information reporting 

website designated by the FSC before 

the 10th day of each month. 

(III) When a public announcement is made 

with an error or omission in an item 

required by regulations to be publicly 

announced and it is required to correct 

it, all the items shall be publicly 

announced again and filed in their 

entirety within two days counting 

inclusively from the date of knowing 

of such error or omission. 

(IV) For the transactions announced and 

filed according to the provision of (I), 

under any of the following 

circumstances, it is necessary to 

publicly announce and file the relevant 
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Clause 

No. 

Current Clause Clause No. after amendment Reason for 

amendment 

information on the FSC’s designated 

website in the appropriate format as 

prescribed by the regulations within 2 

days counting inclusively from the 

date of the event: 

1. The relevant contract signed for the 

original transaction has been 

changed, terminated, or canceled. 

2. Mergers, demergers, acquisitions, 

or transfers of shares are not 

completed on the contractual 

schedule. 

3. The contents originally announced 

and filed have changed. 

information on the FSC’s designated 

website in the appropriate format as 

prescribed by the regulations within 2 

days counting inclusively from the 

date of the event: 

1. The relevant contract signed for the 

original transaction has been 

changed, terminated, or canceled. 

2. Mergers, demergers, acquisitions, 

or transfers of shares are not 

completed on the contractual 

schedule. 

3. The contents originally announced 

and filed have changed. 

Article 6 Assets appraisal procedures 

In acquiring and disposing of real 

property, equipment, or right-of-use assets 

thereof where the transaction amount 

reaches 20% of the company’s paid-in 

capital or NT$300 million or more, the 

company, unless transacting with a 

domestic government agency, engaging 

others to build on its own land, engaging 

others to build on rented land, or 

acquiring or disposing of equipment or 

right-of-use assets thereof held for 

business use, shall obtain an appraisal 

report prior to the date of the event from a 

professional appraiser and shall further 

comply with the following provisions: 

Where the Company acquires and 

disposes of assets through court auction 

procedures, the evidentiary 

documentation issued by the court may be 

substituted for the appraisal reports or 

CPA opinions. 

(I) Where due to special circumstances it is 

necessary to give a limited price, 

specified price, or special price as a 

reference basis for the transaction 

price, the transaction shall be 

submitted for approval in advance by 

the Board of Directors. The same 

procedure shall also be followed 

whenever there is any subsequent 

Assets appraisal procedures 

In acquiring and disposing of real 

property, equipment, or right-of-use assets 

thereof where the transaction amount 

reaches 20% of the company’s paid-in 

capital or NT$300 million or more, the 

company, unless transacting with a 

domestic government agency, engaging 

others to build on its own land, engaging 

others to build on rented land, or 

acquiring or disposing of equipment or 

right-of-use assets thereof held for 

business use, shall obtain an appraisal 

report prior to the date of the event from a 

professional appraiser and shall further 

comply with the following provisions: 

Where the Company acquires and 

disposes of assets through court auction 

procedures, the evidentiary 

documentation issued by the court may be 

substituted for the appraisal reports or 

CPA opinions. 

(I) Where due to special circumstances it is 

necessary to give a limited price, 

specified price, or special price as a 

reference basis for the transaction 

price, the transaction shall be 

submitted for approval in advance by 

the Board of Directors. The same 

procedure shall also be followed 

whenever there is any subsequent 

Same as 

Article 3 
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Clause 

No. 

Current Clause Clause No. after amendment Reason for 

amendment 

change to the terms and conditions of 

the transaction. 

(II) Where the transaction amount is NT$1 

billion or more, appraisal service 

provided by two or more professional 

appraisers shall be obtained. 

(III) Where any one of the following 

circumstances applies with respect to 

the professional appraiser’s appraisal 

results, unless all the appraisal results 

for the assets to be acquired are higher 

than the transaction amount, or all the 

appraisal results for the assets to be 

disposed of are lower than the 

transaction amount, a certified public 

accountant shall be engaged to 

perform the appraisal in accordance 

with the provisions of the Statement of 

Auditing Standards No. 20 published 

by the  Accounting Research and 

Development Foundation (ARDF) and 

render a specific opinion regarding the 

reason for the discrepancy and the 

appropriateness of the transaction 

price: 

1. The discrepancy between the 

appraisal result and the transaction 

amount is 20% or more of the 

transaction amount. 

2. The discrepancy between the 

appraisal results of two or more 

professional appraisers is 10% or more 

of the transaction amount. 

(IV) No more than 3 months may elapse 

between the date of the appraisal 

report issued by a professional 

appraiser and the contract execution 

date. Provided, where the publicly 

announced current value for the same 

period is used and not more than 6 

months have elapsed, an opinion may 

still be issued by the original 

professional appraiser. 

change to the terms and conditions of 

the transaction. 

(II) Where the transaction amount is NT$1 

billion or more, appraisal service 

provided by two or more professional 

appraisers shall be obtained. 

(III) Where any one of the following 

circumstances applies with respect to 

the professional appraiser’s appraisal 

results, unless all the appraisal results 

for the assets to be acquired are higher 

than the transaction amount, or all the 

appraisal results for the assets to be 

disposed of are lower than the 

transaction amount, a certified public 

accountant shall be engaged to render 

a specific opinion regarding the reason 

for the discrepancy and the 

appropriateness of the transaction 

price: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. The discrepancy between the 

appraisal result and the transaction 

amount is 20% or more of the 

transaction amount. 

2. The discrepancy between the 

appraisal results of two or more 

professional appraisers is 10% or more 

of the transaction amount. 

(IV) No more than 3 months may elapse 

between the date of the appraisal 

report issued by a professional 

appraiser and the contract execution 

date. Provided, where the publicly 

announced current value for the same 

period is used and not more than 6 

months have elapsed, an opinion may 

still be issued by the original 

professional appraiser. 
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Clause 

No. 

Current Clause Clause No. after amendment Reason for 

amendment 

Article 11 Resolution procedures 

When the Company intends to acquire or 

dispose of real property or right-of-use 

assets thereof from or to a related party, or 

when it intends to acquire or dispose of 

assets other than real property or right-of-

use assets thereof from or to a related party 

and the transaction amount reaches 20% or 

more of the company’s paid-in capital, 

10% or more of the total assets, or NT$300 

million or more, except in trading of 

domestic government bonds or bonds 

under repurchase and resale agreements, or 

subscription or redemption of money 

market funds issued by domestic securities 

investment trust enterprises, the company 

may not proceed to enter into a transaction 

contract or make a payment until the 

following matters have been approved by 

the Board of Directors and recognized by 

the supervisors: 

(I) The purpose, necessity, and anticipated 

benefit of the acquisition or disposal of 

assets. 

(II) The reason for choosing the related 

party as a transaction counterparty. 

(III) With respect to the acquisition of real 

property or right-of-use assets thereof 

from a related party, information 

regarding appraisal of the 

reasonableness of the preliminary 

transaction terms in accordance with 

the provisions of exclusion as 

stipulated in Article 12 and Article 13. 

(IV) The date and price at which the related 

party originally acquired the real 

property, the original transaction 

counterparty, and the transaction 

counterparty’s relationship to the 

company and the related party. 

(V) Monthly cash flow forecasts for the 

year commencing from the anticipated 

month of signing of the contract, 

evaluation of the necessity of the 

transaction, and reasonableness of the 

Resolution procedures 

When the Company intends to acquire or 

dispose of real property or right-of-use 

assets thereof from or to a related party, or 

when it intends to acquire or dispose of 

assets other than real property or right-of-

use assets thereof from or to a related party 

and the transaction amount reaches 20% or 

more of the company’s paid-in capital, 

10% or more of the total assets, or NT$300 

million or more, except in trading of 

domestic government bonds or bonds 

under repurchase and resale agreements, or 

subscription or redemption of money 

market funds issued by domestic securities 

investment trust enterprises, the company 

may not proceed to enter into a transaction 

contract or make a payment until the 

following matters have been approved by 

the Board of Directors and recognized by 

the supervisors: 

(I) The purpose, necessity, and anticipated 

benefit of the acquisition or disposal of 

assets. 

(II) The reason for choosing the related 

party as a transaction counterparty. 

(III) With respect to the acquisition of real 

property or right-of-use assets thereof 

from a related party, information 

regarding appraisal of the 

reasonableness of the preliminary 

transaction terms in accordance with 

the provisions of exclusion as 

stipulated in Article 12 and Article 13. 

(IV) The date and price at which the related 

party originally acquired the real 

property, the original transaction 

counterparty, and the transaction 

counterparty’s relationship to the 

company and the related party. 

(V) Monthly cash flow forecasts for the 

year commencing from the anticipated 

month of signing of the contract, 

evaluation of the necessity of the 

transaction, and reasonableness of the 

Same as 

Article 3 
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Clause 

No. 

Current Clause Clause No. after amendment Reason for 

amendment 

funds utilization. 

(VI) An appraisal report from a 

professional appraiser or a CPA’s 

opinion obtained in compliance with 

the provisions of Article 10. 

(VII) Restrictive covenants and other 

important stipulations associated with 

the transaction. 

The calculation of the transaction amounts 

referred to in the preceding paragraph shall 

be made in accordance with Article 5, and 

“within the preceding year” as used herein 

refers to the year preceding the date of 

occurrence of the current transaction. 

Items that have been approved by the 

Board of Directors and recognized by the 

supervisors need not be counted toward the 

transaction amount. 

With respect to the following transactions 

conducted between the Company and its 

parent company and subsidiaries, or 

subsidiaries where the Company directly 

or indirectly holds 100% of the issued 

shares or total capital, the Company’s 

Board of Directors may, pursuant to the 

regulations of Article 4, delegate the 

Chairman to decide such matters when the 

transaction is within a certain amount and 

have the decisions subsequently submitted 

to and ratified in the next board meeting: 

1. Acquire or dispose of equipment or 

right-of-use assets thereof for business 

use. 

2. Acquire or dispose of real property 

right-of-use assets for business use. 

When a matter is submitted for discussion 

by the board of directors pursuant to 

paragraph 1, the board of directors shall 

take into full consideration each 

independent director's opinions. If an 

independent director objects to or 

expresses reservations about any matter, it 

shall be recorded in the minutes of the 

board of directors meeting. 

Where an audit committee has been 

funds utilization. 

(VI) An appraisal report from a 

professional appraiser or a CPA’s 

opinion obtained in compliance with 

the provisions of Article 10. 

(VII) Restrictive covenants and other 

important stipulations associated with 

the transaction. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

With respect to the following transactions 

conducted between the Company and its 

parent company and subsidiaries, or 

subsidiaries where the Company directly 

or indirectly holds 100% of the issued 

shares or total capital, the Company’s 

Board of Directors may, pursuant to the 

regulations of Article 4, delegate the 

Chairman to decide such matters when the 

transaction is within a certain amount and 

have the decisions subsequently submitted 

to and ratified in the next board meeting: 

1. Acquire or dispose of equipment or 

right-of-use assets thereof for business 

use. 

2. Acquire or dispose of real property 

right-of-use assets for business use. 

When a matter is submitted for discussion 

by the board of directors pursuant to 

paragraph 1, the board of directors shall 

take into full consideration each 

independent director's opinions. If an 

independent director objects to or 

expresses reservations about any matter, it 

shall be recorded in the minutes of the 

board of directors meeting. 

Where an audit committee has been 
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Clause 

No. 

Current Clause Clause No. after amendment Reason for 

amendment 

established in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act, the matters for which 

paragraph 1 requires recognition by the 

supervisors shall first be approved by one-

half or more of all audit committee 

members and then submitted to the board 

of directors for a resolution, and shall be 

subject to mutatis mutandis application of 

Article 27, paragraphs 4 and 5. 

established in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act, the matters for 

which paragraph 1 requires recognition by 

the supervisors shall first be approved by 

one-half or more of all audit committee 

members and then submitted to the board 

of directors for a resolution, and shall be 

subject to mutatis mutandis application of 

Article 27, paragraphs 4 and 5. 

If the Company or a subsidiary thereof that 

is not a domestic public company will have 

a transaction set out in paragraph 1 and the 

transaction amount will reach 10 percent 

or more of the Company’s total assets, the 

Company shall submit the materials in all 

the subparagraphs of paragraph 1 to the 

shareholders meeting for approval before 

the transaction contract may be entered 

into and any payment made. However, this 

restriction does not apply to transactions 

between the Company and its parent 

company or subsidiaries or between its 

subsidiaries. 

The calculation of the transaction amounts 

referred to in paragraph 1 and the 

preceding paragraph shall be made in 

accordance with Article 5 herein, and 

"within the preceding year" as used herein 

refers to the year preceding the date of 

occurrence of the current transaction. 

Items that have been approved by the 

shareholders meeting or board of directors 

and recognized by the supervisors need not 

be counted toward the transaction amount. 

Article 25 Professional appraisers (referring to real 

property appraisers or other persons who 

are legally engaged in real property and 

equipment valuation operations) and their 

officers, certified public accounts, 

attorneys, and securities underwriters that 

provide the Company with appraisal 

reports, certified public accountant’s 

opinions, attorney’s opinions, or 

underwriter’s opinions shall meet the 

following requirements: 

Professional appraisers (referring to real 

property appraisers or other persons who 

are legally engaged in real property and 

equipment valuation operations) and their 

officers, certified public accounts, 

attorneys, and securities underwriters that 

provide the Company with appraisal 

reports, certified public accountant’s 

opinions, attorney’s opinions, or 

underwriter’s opinions shall meet the 

following requirements: 

Partial 

Rephrasing. 
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Clause 

No. 

Current Clause Clause No. after amendment Reason for 

amendment 

(I) May not have previously received a 

final and un-appealable sentence to 

imprisonment for 1 year or longer for a 

violation of the Act, the Company Act, and 

Banking Act, the Insurance Act, the 

Financial Holding Company Act, or the 

Business Entity Accounting Act, or for 

fraud, breach of trust, embezzlement, 

forgery of documents, or occupational 

crime. However, this provision does not 

apply if 3 years have already passed since 

completion of the service of the sentence, 

since the expiration of the period of a 

suspended sentence, or since a pardon was 

received. 

(II) May not be a related party or de facto 

related party of any party to the 

transaction. 

(III) If the company is required to obtain 

appraisal reports from two or more 

professional appraisers, the different 

professional appraisers or appraisal 

officers may not be related parties or de 

facto related parties of each other. 

When issuing an appraisal report or 

opinion, the personnel referred to in the 

preceding paragraph shall comply with the 

following: 

 

 

(I) Prior to accepting a case, they shall 

prudently assess their own 

professional capabilities, practical 

experience, and independence. 

(II) When examining a case, they shall 

appropriately plan and execute 

adequate working procedures, in order 

to produce a conclusion as the basis 

for issuing the report or opinion. The 

related working procedures, data 

collected, and conclusion shall be 

fully and accurately specified in the 

case working papers. 

(III) They shall undertake an item-by-item 

evaluation of the comprehensiveness, 

(I) May not have previously received a 

final and un-appealable sentence to 

imprisonment for 1 year or longer for a 

violation of the Act, the Company Act, and 

Banking Act, the Insurance Act, the 

Financial Holding Company Act, or the 

Business Entity Accounting Act, or for 

fraud, breach of trust, embezzlement, 

forgery of documents, or occupational 

crime. However, this provision does not 

apply if 3 years have already passed since 

completion of the service of the sentence, 

since the expiration of the period of a 

suspended sentence, or since a pardon was 

received. 

(II) May not be a related party or de facto 

related party of any party to the 

transaction. 

(III) If the company is required to obtain 

appraisal reports from two or more 

professional appraisers, the different 

professional appraisers or appraisal 

officers may not be related parties or de 

facto related parties of each other. 

When issuing an appraisal report or 

opinion, the personnel referred to in the 

preceding paragraph shall comply with the 

self-regulatory rules of the industry 

associations to which they belong and with 

the following: 

(I) Prior to accepting a case, they shall 

prudently assess their own 

professional capabilities, practical 

experience, and independence. 

(II) When conducting a case, they shall 

appropriately plan and execute 

adequate working procedures, in order 

to produce a conclusion as the basis 

for issuing the report or opinion. The 

related working procedures, data 

collected, and conclusion shall be 

fully and accurately specified in the 

case working papers. 

(III) They shall undertake an item-by-item 

evaluation of the appropriateness and 
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Clause 

No. 

Current Clause Clause No. after amendment Reason for 

amendment 

accuracy, and reasonableness of the 

sources of data used, the parameters, 

and the information, as the basis for 

issuance of the appraisal report or the 

opinion. 

(IV) They shall issue a statement attesting 

to the professional competence and 

independence of the personnel who 

prepared the report or opinion, and 

that they have evaluated and found 

that the information used is reasonable 

and accurate, and that they have 

complied with applicable law and 

regulations. 

reasonableness of the sources of data 

used, the parameters, and the 

information, as the basis for issuance 

of the appraisal report or the opinion. 

 

(IV) They shall issue a statement attesting 

to the professional competence and 

independence of the personnel who 

prepared the report or opinion, and 

that they have evaluated and found 

that the information used is reasonable 

and appropriate, and that they have 

complied with applicable law and 

regulations. 
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Appendix 1 (Articles of Incorporation) 

Articles of Incorporation of King Slide Works Co., Ltd. 

 
Chapter 1 General Provisions 

Article 1 The Company is named “King Slide Works Co.,Ltd.” organized under the Company Act. 

Article 2 The Company’s scope of business is as follows: 

I. CA02990 Other fabricated metal products manufacturing not elsewhere classified 

II. CB01010 Mechanical and equipment manufacturing 

III. CC01080 Electronic parts and components manufacturing 

IV. CC01110 Computers and computing peripheral equipments manufacturing 

V. CC01990 Electrical machinery, supplies manufacturing 

VI. F106010 Wholesale of ironware 

VII. F401010 International trade 

VIII. ZZ99999 -All business items that are not prohibited or restricted by law, except those that are 

subject to special approval. 

Article 3 The Company may provide endorsement or guarantee and act as a guarantor.  

Article 4 The Company has a head office in Kaohsiung City, and may establish branches domestically or 

internationally as necessary by the resolution of the Board of Directors. 

Article 5 The Company’s investment in other businesses is not subject to the restriction of “investment not 

exceeding 40% of the Company’s paid-in capital” as stipulated in the Company Act. 

   

Chapter 2 Shares 

Article 6 The Company’s authorized capital amount is NT$1.38 billion, divided into 138 million shares at NT$10 

par and issued in installments. 

The Board of Directors is authorized to have the unissued shares issued according to actual needs.              

For the total capital as stated in the preceding paragraph, an amount of NT$25 million is available for 

the issuance of employee stock options, totaling 2.5 million shares at NT$10 par. The Board of 

Directors is authorized to resolve and issue stock shares according to actual needs. 

Article 7 The Company’s stocks shall all be in registered form, affixed with the signatures or personal seals of 

more than three directors, and sequentially numbered. They are also certified by the competent 

authority or its approved issuing and registration agency before issuance. 

Article 8 The new shares issued by the Company may be printed into a consolidated share certificate with the 

total amount and may be exempted from printing any share certificate for the shares issued. 

The shares issuance as stated in the preceding paragraph shall be registered by or  be placed under the 

custody of the centralized securities depository  enterprise, and may  be replaced with the security 

with large par value at the request of the centralized securities depository enterprise. 
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Article 9 Shareholders of the Company shall, in the course of handling share transfer, pledge of rights, 

registration for loss, succession, gifts, loss of seal, amendment of seal or change of address, and 

exercise all their rights, unless specified otherwise by law and securities regulations, comply with the 

“Regulations Governing the Administration of Shareholder Services of Public Companies”. 

Article 10 The transfer of shares shall be suspended within 60 days before the annual shareholders’ meeting, 

within 30 days before the special shareholders’ meeting, or within 5 days before the date fixed by the 

company for distribution of dividends, bonus or other benefits. 

   

Chapter 3 Shareholders’ Meeting 

Article 11   Shareholders meetings include annual meetings and special meetings. The annual shareholders’ meeting 

shall be held once a year and convened within 6 months after the end of each fiscal year, and all 

shareholders shall be informed by a notice 30 days prior to the scheduled meeting date. The special 

shareholders’ meetings shall be convened when necessary, and all shareholders shall be informed by a 

notice 15 days prior to the scheduled date. 

The aforementioned notice shall be with the date, place, and the purpose of the meeting clearly stated.  

A shareholders meeting, unless otherwise provided by the Company Act, is convened by the Board of 

Directors. 

Article 12   When a shareholder is unable to attend the shareholders’ meeting for any reason, he/she may appoint a 

proxy with a power of attorney published by the Company, stated the scope of authority, to attend the 

meeting. When one person is concurrently appointed as the proxy by two or more shareholders, the 

voting rights represented by that proxy may not exceed 3% of the voting rights represented by the total 

number of issued shares. If that percentage is exceeded, the voting rights in excess of that percentage 

shall not be included in the calculation. 

With regard to the process of Shareholders attending the meeting by a proxy, unless otherwise provided 

by the Company Act, should be handled in accordance with the provisions of the “Regulations 

Governing the use of Proxies for Attendance at the Shareholder Meetings of Public Companies” 

announced by the competent authorities. 

Article 13   A shareholders’ meeting, unless otherwise provided by the Company Act, is to be chaired by the 

Chairman. When the Chairman is on leave or unable to exercise the powers of the Chairman for any 

reason, the Chairman shall appoint one of the directors to act as the Chairman. Where the Chairman 

does not make such a designation, the directors shall elect from among themselves one person to serve 

as the Chairman. The shareholders’ meeting shall be handled in accordance with the Company’s “Rules 

of Procedure for Shareholders’ Meetings”. 

Article 14   The resolutions of the shareholders’ meeting, unless otherwise provided by the Company Act, shall be 

reached with the attendance of the shareholders who have had the majority of the shares issued, and 

with the consent of the attending shareholders who have had the majority of the voting rights. 

The shareholders of the Company have one vote per share, but those who have had events as stipulated 

in Article 179 of the Company Act have no voting rights. 

Article 15   The resolutions of the shareholders meeting shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting, which shall 

be signed or sealed by the Chairman, and the minutes of the meeting shall be distributed to the 
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shareholders within 20 days after the meeting. 

The distribution of the minutes of the meeting as stated in the preceding paragraph shall be handled in 

accordance with the provisions of the Company Act. 

The minutes of the meeting shall be prepared with the information of the year, month, day, place of the 

meeting, the name of the Chairman, the method of resolution, the essentials of the proceedings, and the 

results of the meeting. The minutes shall be kept persistently throughout the existence of the Company. 

The attendance registry and the powers of attorney of the proxies of the shareholders meeting shall be 

retained for at least one year. However, if a shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the 

Company Act, the records shall be retained until the conclusion of the litigation. 

 

Chapter 4 Directors and Supervisors 

Article 16   The Company has seven directors and two to four supervisors designated, of which, two to four 

independent directors who are elected according to the candidate nomination system for a 3-year term 

and can be re-elected. The qualifications of the independent directors and related matters shall be 

handled in accordance with the relevant law and regulations. 

For the remuneration of all directors and supervisors, the Board of Directors is authorized to determine 

it by referring to the standards of the industry. 

The total number of the Company’s registered shares held by all of the directors and supervisors is 

determined according to the “Rules and Review Procedures for the Director and Supervisor Share 

Ownership Ratio at Public Companies” announced by the competent security authorities. 

Article 17   The Board of Directors shall be organized by the directors. The directors shall elect among themselves 

one person to serve as Chairman for managing the business operation and representing the company 

externally. Also, a Vice Chairman can be elected depending on the actual needs of the business 

operation. 

Article 18   A board meeting is to be convened by the Chairman. A board meeting is chaired by the Chairman. 

When the Chairman is on leave or for any reason unable to exercise the powers of the Chairman, the 

Chairman shall appoint one of the directors to act as Chairman. Where the Chairman does not make 

such a designation, the directors shall elect from among themselves one person to serve as Chairman. 

In case a meeting of the board of directors is proceeded via visual communication network, then 

directors attend such a visual communication meeting are deemed to be present in person. 

If a director is unable to attend the board meeting for any reason, he/she may appoint another director to 

act in his/her behalf by proxy with the scope of authorization stated, but the director shall act as the 

proxy of one other director only. 

Article 19   The resolutions of the Board of Directors, unless otherwise provided by the Company Act, shall be 

reached with the attendance of the majority of directors, and with the consent of the majority of the 

attending directors. 
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Article 20   The Company has established an audit committee which are composed of the entire number of 

independent directors. The exercise by the audit committee and its independent director members of the 

powers and matters related thereto shall be in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Act and the 

relating regulations. 

Article 21   The board meeting notice should be prepared with the purpose of convening the meeting stated and it 

can be issued in writing or by fax or E-mail. 

   

Chapter 5 Insurance 

Article 22   The Company may purchase liability insurance for the directors during their office term according to the 

liability resulting from exercising their duties. 

 

Chapter 6 Managers 

Article 23   The Company may have managers appointed with their appointment, dismissal, and remuneration 

handled in accordance with the provisions of Article 29 of the Company Act. 

  

Chapter 7 Accounting 

Article 24   The Company’s fiscal year is from January 1 to December 31 of each year. At the end of each fiscal 

year, the Board of Directors shall prepare the following statements and then submitted to the 

shareholders’ meeting for acceptance. 

1. Business report 

2. Financial statements 

3. Surplus earning distribution or loss off-setting proposals. 

Article 25    If the Company makes a profit in the year, no less than 0.1% of the earnings shall be set aside as 

compensation to employees. The Board of Directors decides the distribution of stock dividend or cash 

dividend, and the employees of the subordinate companies who have met certain conditions are also 

entitled to the said compensation. The Company’s Board of Directors may resolve to appropriate no 

more than 5% of the aforementioned earnings as compensation to directors. The compensation to 

employee and to directors shall be reported in the shareholders’ meeting. However, if the company still 

has accumulated losses, it should retain a sufficient amount to offset the loss before appropriating 

compensation to employees and directors according to the ratio stated in the preceding paragraph. 

Article 26    The Company’s earnings, if any, should be applied for distribution as follows: 

1. Pay taxes and dues by law 

2. Offset the accumulated losses, 

3. Set aside 10% of said profits as legal reserve. However, when the legal reserve is equivalent to the 

paid-in capital of the Company, the appropriation of legal reserve could be ceased. 

4. The special reserve shall be appropriated or reversed according to law and regulations. 

5. The remaining amount, if any, plus the accumulated undistributed earnings shall be available for 

distribution according to the proposal of the Board of Directors. The distribution of dividends to 

the shareholders should be presented in the shareholders meeting for resolutions. 
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The Company engages in an innovative industry with products widely used in various industries, such 

as cloud servers, network communication, kitchen ware, and consumer electronics. The environment is 

changing, the business development is growing, and the dividend policy is in line with current and 

future development plans. Considering the investment environment, capital demand, and domestic and 

international competition, and taking into account the interests of shareholders, part of the earnings 

should be retained for the company’s operational needs. The remaining amount of the earnings can be 

distributed in cash or stock, where the cash dividend is not less than 10% of the total dividend. 

 

Article 27   The matters not covered in the Articles of Incorporation will be handled in accordance with the 

provisions of the Company Act. 

Article 28   The Articles of Incorporation were enacted on September 2, 1986. 

The 1st amendment was made on December 29, 1986. 

The 2nd amendment was made on May 22, 1994. 

The 3rd amendment was made on September 18, 1995. 

The 4th amendment was made on March 14, 1998. 

The 5th amendment was made on June 13, 1999. 

The 6th amendment was made on November 5, 1999. 

The 7th amendment was made on June 15, 2000. 

The 8th amendment was made on June 20, 2001. 

The 9th amendment was made on June 29, 2002. 

The 10th amendment was made on June 29, 2003. 

The 11th amendment was made on April 30, 2004. 

The 12th amendment was made on March 16, 2005. 

The 13th amendment was made on June 28, 2005. 

The 14th amendment was made on June 16, 2006. 

The 15th amendment was made on June 28, 2007. 

The 16th amendment was made on May 16, 2008. 

The 17th amendment was made on June 24, 2010. 

The 18th amendment was made on June 27, 2012. 

The 19th amendment was made on June 23, 2016. 

The 20th amendment was made on July 30, 2021. 

 

King Slide Works Co., Ltd. 

Chairman: Lin Tsung-Chi 
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Appendix 2 (Rules of Procedure for Shareholders Meetings) 

King Slide Works Co., Ltd. 

Rules of Procedure for Shareholders’ Meeting 
It was resolved in the regular shareholders’ meeting on June 16, 2006 for implementation. 

 

I. The rules of procedures for the Company’s shareholders meetings, except as otherwise provided by the 

Company Act, shall be as provided in these Rules. 

II. The shareholders meeting shall furnish the attending shareholders with an attendance book to sign, or 

attending shareholders may hand in a sign-in card in lieu of signing in. 

The number of shares in attendance shall be calculated according to the shares indicated by the attendance 

book and sign-in cards handed in. 

III. Attendance and voting at a shareholders meeting shall be calculated based on the number of shares. 

IV. The venue for a shareholders meeting shall be where the Company is located, or a place easily accessible to 

shareholders and suitable for a shareholders’ meeting. The meeting may begin no earlier than 9 a.m. and no 

later than 3 p.m. 

V. If a shareholders meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, the meeting shall be chaired by the 

Chairman of the board. When the Chairman is on leave or for any reason unable to exercise the powers of 

the Chairman, the Vice Chairman shall act in place of the Chairman. If there is no Vice Chairman or the 

Vice Chairman also is on leave or for any reason unable to exercise the powers of the Vice Chairman, the 

Chairman shall appoint one of the managing directors to act as Chairman. If there is no managing directors 

in service, a director should be appointed to act in place of the Chairman. Where the Chairman does not 

make such a designation, the managing directors or the directors shall elect from among themselves one 

person to serve as Chairman. 

If a shareholders meeting is convened by a party with power to convene but other than the Board of 

Directors, the convening party shall chair the meeting. 

VI. The Company may appoint its attorneys, certified public accountants, or related persons to attend a 

shareholders’ meeting. 

Staff handling administrative affairs of a shareholders’ meeting shall wear identification cards or arm bands. 

VII. The process of the shareholders’ meeting should be recorded with video or audio uninterruptedly and the 

video or audio recording shall be retained for at least 1 year. 

VIII. The Chairman shall call the meeting to order at the appointed meeting time. However, when the attending 

shareholders do not represent a majority of the total number of issued shares, the Chairman may announce a 

postponement, provided that no more than two such postponements, for a combined total of no more than 1 

hour, may be made. If the quorum is not met after two postponements, but the attending shareholders 

represent one third or more of the total number of issued shares, a tentative resolution may be adopted 

pursuant to paragraph 1 of Article 175 of the Company Act. 

When, prior to conclusion of the meeting, the attending shareholders represent a majority of the total number 
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of issued shares, the Chairman may resubmit the tentative resolution for a vote by the shareholders’ meeting 

pursuant to Article 174 of the Company Act. 

IX. If a shareholders’ meeting is convened by the Board of Directors, the meeting agenda shall be set by the 

Board of Directors. The meeting shall proceed in the order set by the agenda, which may not be changed 

without a resolution of the shareholders’ meeting. 

The provisions of the preceding paragraph apply mutatis mutandis to a shareholders’ meeting convened by a 

party with the power to convene that is not the Board of Directors. 

The Chairman may not declare the meeting adjourned prior to completion of deliberation on the meeting 

agenda of the preceding two paragraphs (including extraordinary motions), except by a resolution of the 

shareholders meeting. 

After the meeting is adjourned, the shareholders may not elect another Chairman to continue the meeting at 

the original site or another place. However, if the Chairman declares the meeting adjourned in violation of 

the rules of procedure, the other board directors shall promptly assist the attending shareholders in electing a 

new Chairman in accordance with statutory procedures, by agreement of a majority of the votes represented 

by the attending shareholders, and then continue the meeting. 

X. Before speaking, an attending shareholder must specify on a speaker’s slip the subject of the speech, his/her 

shareholder account number (or attendance card number), and account name. The order in which 

shareholders speak will be set by the Chairman. 

A shareholder in attendance who has submitted a speaker’s slip but does not actually speak shall be deemed 

to have not spoken. When the content of the speech does not correspond to the subject given on the speaker’s 

slip, the spoken content shall prevail. 

When a shareholder is speaking, other shareholders may not speak or interrupt unless they have sought and 

obtained the consent of the Chairman and the shareholder that has the floor. The Chairman shall stop any 

violation. 

XI. Except with the consent of the Chairman, a shareholder may not speak more than twice on the same 

proposal, and a single speech may not exceed 5 minutes. 

If the shareholder’s speech violates the rules or exceeds the scope of the agenda item, the Chairman may stop 

such act or terminate the speech discretionally. 

XII. When a juristic person is appointed to attend as proxy, it may designate only one person to represent it in the 

meeting. 

When a juristic person shareholder appoints two or more representatives to attend a shareholders’ meeting, 

only one of the representatives so appointed may speak on the same proposal. 

XIII. After an attending shareholder has spoken, the Chairman may respond in person or direct relevant personnel 

to respond. 

XIV. When the Chairman is of the opinion that a proposal has been discussed sufficiently to put it to a vote, the 

Chairman may announce the discussion closed and call for a vote. 

XV. Vote monitoring and counting personnel for the voting on a proposal shall be appointed by the Chairman, 
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provided that all monitoring personnel shall be shareholders of the Company. 

The results of the voting shall be announced on-site at the meeting, and a record made of the vote. 

XVI. When a meeting is in progress, the Chairman may announce a break based on time considerations. 

XVII. Except as otherwise provided in the Company Act and in the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the 

passage of a proposal shall require an affirmative vote of a majority of the voting rights represented by the 

attending shareholders. 

At the time of voting, if the Chairman has consulted the attending shareholders without any objection raised, 

it shall be deemed as passed and its validity shall be the same as the voting. 

XVIII. When there is an amendment or an alternative to a proposal, the Chairman shall present the amended or 

alternative proposal together with the original proposal and decide the order in which they will be put to a 

vote. When any one among them is passed, the other proposals will then be deemed rejected and no further 

voting shall be required. 

XIX. The Chairman may direct the proctors (or security personnel) to help maintain order at the meeting place. 

When proctors (or security personnel) help maintain order at the meeting place, they shall wear an 

identification card or armband bearing the word “Proctor”. 

XX. The matters not specified in the Rules shall be handled in accordance with the provisions of the Company 

Act, the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, and other relevant law and regulations. 

XXI. These Rules and any amendments hereto, shall be implemented after adoption by shareholders’ meetings. 
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Appendix 3 (Procedures for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets) 

 

King Slide Works Co., Ltd. 

Procedures for Acquisition or Disposal of Assets 

Date of Amendment: July 30, 2021 

 

Chapter 1 General Rules 

Article 1: Purpose and governing law 

In order to strengthen asset management and implement information disclosure, the Procedures are revised 

in accordance with Article 36-1 of the Securities and Exchange Act and the “Regulations Governing the 

Acquisition and Disposal of Assets by Public Companies”.. 

 

Article 2: Applicable scope of the assets 

(I) Investment in stocks, government bonds, corporate bonds, financial bonds, securities presenting interest in a fund, 

depositary receipts, call (put) warrants, beneficiary certificates, and asset-backed securities; 

(II) Real property (including land, houses and buildings, and investment property) and equipment; 

(III) Memberships. 

(IV) Patents, copyrights, trademarks, franchise rights, and other intangible assets. 

(V) Right-of-use assets 

(VI) Financial derivatives: Refers to a transaction contract whose value is derived from specific interest rates, financial 

instrument price, product price, exchange rates, price or fee indexes, credit rating or credit index, or forward 

contract, option contract, futures contract, leverage bond contract, exchange contract, portfolio of the 

aforementioned contracts, embedded derivatives contracts, or structured products derived from other variables. 

The so-called “forward contracts” does not include insurance contracts, performance contracts, after-sales service 

contracts, long-term lease contracts, and long-term purchases (sales) contracts. 

(VII) Assets acquired or disposed of in accordance with law mergers, demergers, acquisitions, or transfer of 

shares: Refers to the acquisition and disposal of assets by a merger, demerger, or acquisition according to the 

Business Merger and Acquisitions Act, Financial Holding Company Act, the Financial Institution Merger Act, or 

other laws, or by transfer of shares (referred to as “share transfer” hereinafter) with new shares issued according 

to Article 156-3 of the Company Act. 

(VIII) Other major assets 

 

Article 3: Appraisal procedures 

(I) When the Company obtains or disposes of securities investments or engages in the trading of 

financial derivatives, the Finance and Accounting Department shall conduct the relevant benefit 

analysis and assess possible risks. For the acquisition and disposal of real property and other assets, 
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each unit shall formulate capital expenditure plans in advance to initiate a feasibility assessment on 

the purpose and expected benefit from the acquisition and disposal of assets. If the real property is 

obtained from a related party, the reasonableness of trading conditions shall be assessed in 

accordance with the provisions of Chapter 2 of the Procedures. 

(II) For the acquisition and disposal of securities, the Company shall obtain the financial statements of 

the target company that have recently been certified or reviewed by the accountants for reference in 

evaluating the transaction price before the date of occurrence. In addition, for the transaction amount 

reaching 20% of the Company’s paid-in capital or NT$300 million or more, the accountants should 

be consulted before the date of occurrence to express an opinion on the reasonableness of the 

transaction price. If the accountants need to use a report by an expert, it shall be handled in 

accordance with the provisions of Statement of Auditing Standard No. 20 issued by the Accounting 

Research and Development Foundation. However, securities with an available market price or 

otherwise provided by competent securities authorities are not subject to such requirement. 

(III) In acquiring or disposing of intangible assets or right-of-use assets or memberships thereof where 

the transaction amount reaches 20% of the company’s paid-in capital or NT$300 million or more, 

unless transacting with a domestic government agency, an accountant shall be engaged to render an 

opinion on the reasonableness of the transaction price before the date of occurrence in accordance 

with the provisions of Statement of Auditing Standards No. 20 published by the Accounting 

Research and Development Foundation (ARDF). 

(IV) The acquisition and disposal of real property, equipment, or right-of-use assets, if any, should be 

handled in accordance with the provisions of Article 6 of the Procedures. 

(V) The Company, while handling the merger, division, acquisition, or transfer of shares, shall engage 

an accountant, attorney, or securities underwriter to express opinions on the reasonableness of the 

conversion ratio, the purchase price, and the cash or other property distributed to the shareholders 

before a board meeting is convened, and then present it to the board of directors for discussion and 

resolution. 

(VI) The price determination methods and references for the Company’s acquisition and disposal of 

assets, in addition to the opinions of professional experts, accountants, and other relevant experts as 

stated in the preceding paragraph, shall be handled as follows: 

1. Securities acquired or disposed of that have been traded in the stock exchange market or TPEx 

should be determined according to the current equity or bond price. 

2. Securities acquired or disposed of that are not traded in the stock exchange market or TPEx should 

be priced with the net worth per share, technology and profitability, future development potential, 

market interest rate, bond coupon rate, debtor’s credit, and transaction price at the time taking into 

account. 
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3. To obtain or dispose of the membership card, it is necessary to consider the benefits that can be 

generated and refer to the transaction price at the time. For the acquisition and disposal of patents, 

copyrights, trademarks, franchise rights, and other intangible assets, it is necessary to refer to 

international or market practices, useful lives, and the impact on the company’s technology and 

business. 

4. The acquisition and disposal of real property, equipment, or right-of-use assets shall be 

determined by referring to the announced present value, the assessed present value, the actual 

transaction price or book value of the adjacent real property, or the quotation of the suppliers. If 

the real property is acquired from a related party, it should be calculated according to the methods 

specified in Chapter 2 of the Procedures in order to assess whether the transaction price is 

reasonable or not. 

5. The trading of financial derivatives should take into account the trading conditions of the futures 

market, exchange rates, and the trend of interest rate. 

6. The merger, division, acquisition or transfer of shares shall take into account the nature of its 

business, net value per share, asset value, technology and profitability, production capacity, and 

future growth potential. 

 

Article 4: Operating procedures 

(I) Authorized amount and Authorization Level 

1. Securities: Authorize the President to conduct transactions within the amount specified in Article 

7 of the Procedures. If it meets the public announcement and filing standards as stipulated in 

Article 5, it shall be reported to the Chairman for verification on the next day and presented in the 

most recent board meeting for ratification. However, for the acquisition and disposal of stock 

shares, corporate bonds, and private placement securities that are not traded in the stock exchange 

market or TPEx for an amount meeting the public announcement and filing standard, it shall be 

resolved by the Board of Directors in advance. In addition, the Company’s Mainland China area 

investment must be approved by the board of directors before it is listed for trade. After it is listed 

for trade, it should be implemented with the approval of the shareholders meeting or implemented 

by the Board of Directors with the authorization of the shareholders meeting, and may not be 

initiated without the approval of the Investment Commission MOEA. 

2. Trading of financial derivatives 

(1) Hedging transactions: According to the changes in the company’s turnover and risk position, 

the Chairman designates personnel to conduct transactions for an amount of US$1 million or 

less (including equivalent amount in different currency) of a single or cumulative transactions. 

The transaction for an amount exceeding US$1 million should be approved by the Chairman in 
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advance. 

(2) Non-hedging transactions: In order to reduce risks, the transactions for an amount of US$1 

million or less (including an equivalent amount in a different currency) of a single or cumulative 

transactions must be approved by the Chairman. Also, the transactions for an amount of US$1 

million or more of a single or cumulative transactions should be approved by the Board of 

Directors in advance. 

(3) In order for the company’s authorization to correspond to the bank’s relative supervision and 

management, the authorized trader must inform the bank. 

(4) The trading of financial derivatives conducted according to the aforementioned authorization 

shall be reported in the most recent board meeting afterwards. 

3. Acquisition of real property or right-of-use assets from related parties: Relevant information 

should be prepared in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 2 of the Procedures, and it should 

be resolved in the board meeting and recognized by the supervisors in advance. 

4. Mergers, demergers, acquisitions, or transfer of shares: The relevant procedures and information 

preparation shall be carried out in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 4 of the Procedures, 

where mergers, divisions, and acquisitions shall be subject to the resolution of the shareholders 

meeting, provided that where a provision of another act exempts a company from convening a 

shareholders meeting to approve the merger, demerger, or acquisition, this restriction shall not 

apply. In addition, the transfer of shares shall be resolved by the Board of Directors in advance. 

5. Others: It should be handled according to the internal control system and the operating procedures 

stipulated by the authority. If the transaction amount reaches the public announcement and filing 

standard of Article 5, the equipment that is acquired or disposed of for business use can be reported 

to the Board of Directors for recognition afterwards, the resolution of the Board of Directors must 

be obtained in advance for the rest. The matters as stipulated in Article 185 of the Company Act 

must be resolved in the shareholders meeting in advance. 

(II) Execution unit and transaction process 

The Company’s securities investment and trading of financial derivatives are to be implemented by 

the Finance and Accounting Department and the personnel designated by the Chairman. The real 

property and other assets are to be handled by the applying departments and relevant responsible 

units. The mergers, divisions, acquisitions, or transfer of shares are to be handled by the units 

designated by the Chairman. After the acquisition and disposal of assets is assessed and approved 

accordingly, the execution unit shall perform the contracting, receiving, paying, delivering, and 

inspecting and accepting process, and shall handle the relevant operating procedures of the internal 

control system depending on the nature of the assets. In addition, related party transactions, the 

trading of financial derivatives, and mergers, demergers, acquisitions, or transfer of shares shall be 
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handled in accordance with the provisions of Chapters 2–4 of the Procedures. 

 

Article 5: Public announcement and filing procedures 

(I) Under any of the following circumstances, the Company acquiring or disposing of assets shall 

publicly announce and file the relevant information on the FSC’s designated website in the 

appropriate format as prescribed by the regulations within 2 days counting inclusively from the date 

of the event: 

1. Acquisition and disposal of real property or right-of-use assets thereof from or to a related party, 

or acquisition and disposal of assets other than real property or right-of-use assets thereof from or 

to a related party where the transaction amount reaches 20% or more of paid-in capital, 10% or 

more of total assets, or NT$300 million or more. Provided, this shall not apply to trading of 

domestic government bonds or bonds under repurchase and resale agreements, or subscription or 

redemption of money market funds issued by domestic securities investment trust enterprises. 

2. Mergers, demergers, acquisitions, and transfer of shares. 

3. Losses from the trading of financial derivatives reaching the limits on aggregate losses or losses 

on individual contracts stipulated according to paragraph 1, Article 8, Chapter 4 of the Procedures. 

4. Where equipment or right-of-use assets are acquired and disposed of thereof for business use, the 

transaction counterparty is not a related party, and the transaction amount exceeds NT$500 million. 

5. Where land is acquired under an arrangement on engaging others to build on the company’s own 

land, engaging others to build on rented land, joint construction and allocation of housing units, 

joint construction and allocation of ownership percentages, or joint construction and separate sale, 

and the transaction counterparty is not a related party. Also, the amount the company expects to 

invest in the transaction reaches NT$500 million or more. 

6. Where an asset transaction other than any of those referred to in the preceding five subparagraphs 

or Mainland China area investment is for an amount reaching 20% of the company’s paid-in 

capital or NT$300 million or more, such as the cumulative transaction amount of acquisitions and 

disposals of the same type of underlying asset with the same transaction counterparty within the 

preceding year. The cumulative transaction amount of acquisitions and disposals (cumulative 

acquisitions and disposals, respectively) of real property thereof within the same development 

project within the preceding year, or the cumulative transaction amount of acquisitions and 

disposals (cumulative acquisitions and disposals, respectively) of the same security within the 

preceding year. “Within the preceding year” refers to the year preceding the date of occurrence of 

the current transaction”. Items that are duly announced in accordance with the “Regulations 

Governing the Acquisition and Disposal of Assets by Public Companies” and supported with an 

appraisal reported issued by the professional appraisers or the opinions of an accountant need not 
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be counted toward the transaction amount. Provided, this shall not apply to the following 

circumstances: 

(1) Trading of domestic government bonds 

(2) Trading of bonds under repurchase and resale agreements, or subscription or redemption of 

money market funds issued by domestic securities investment trust enterprises; 

(II) The Company shall compile monthly reports on the status of the trading of financial derivatives 

engaged in up to the end of the preceding month by the Company and any subsidiaries that are not 

domestic public companies and enter the information in the prescribed format into the information 

reporting website designated by the FSC before the 10th day of each month. 

(III) When a public announcement is made with an error or omission in an item required by regulations 

to be publicly announced and it is required to correct it, all the items shall be publicly announced 

again and filed in their entirety within two days counting inclusively from the date of knowing of 

such error or omission. 

(IV) For the transactions announced and filed according to the provision of (I), under any of the following 

circumstances, it is necessary to publicly announce and file the relevant information on the FSC’s 

designated website in the appropriate format as prescribed by the regulations within 2 days counting 

inclusively from the date of the event: 

1. The relevant contract signed for the original transaction has been changed, terminated, or 

canceled. 

2. Mergers, demergers, acquisitions, or transfers of shares are not completed on the contractual 

schedule. 

3. The contents originally announced and filed have changed. 

 

Article 6: Assets appraisal procedures 

In acquiring and disposing of real property, equipment, or right-of-use assets thereof where the transaction 

amount reaches 20% of the company’s paid-in capital or NT$300 million or more, the company, unless 

transacting with a domestic government agency, engaging others to build on its own land, engaging others 

to build on rented land, or acquiring or disposing of equipment or right-of-use assets thereof held for business 

use, shall obtain an appraisal report prior to the date of the event from a professional appraiser and shall 

further comply with the following provisions: Where the Company acquires and disposes of assets through 

court auction procedures, the evidentiary documentation issued by the court may be substituted for the 

appraisal reports or CPA opinions. 

(I) Where due to special circumstances it is necessary to give a limited price, specified price, or special 

price as a reference basis for the transaction price, the transaction shall be submitted for approval in 

advance by the Board of Directors. The same procedure shall also be followed whenever there is 
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any subsequent change to the terms and conditions of the transaction. 

(II) Where the transaction amount is NT$1 billion or more, appraisal service provided by two or more 

professional appraisers shall be obtained. 

(III) Where any one of the following circumstances applies with respect to the professional appraiser’s 

appraisal results, unless all the appraisal results for the assets to be acquired are higher than the 

transaction amount, or all the appraisal results for the assets to be disposed of are lower than the 

transaction amount, a certified public accountant shall be engaged to perform the appraisal in 

accordance with the provisions of the Statement of Auditing Standards No. 20 published by the  

Accounting Research and Development Foundation (ARDF) and render a specific opinion 

regarding the reason for the discrepancy and the appropriateness of the transaction price: 

1. The discrepancy between the appraisal result and the transaction amount is 20% or more of the 

transaction amount. 

2. The discrepancy between the appraisal results of two or more professional appraisers is 10% or 

more of the transaction amount. 

(IV) No more than 3 months may elapse between the date of the appraisal report issued by a professional 

appraiser and the contract execution date. Provided, where the publicly announced current value for 

the same period is used and not more than 6 months have elapsed, an opinion may still be issued by 

the original professional appraiser. 

 

Article 7: Investment scope and amount 

In addition to the assets obtained for business use, the Company and its subsidiaries have also invested in 

and purchased the real property, right-of-use assets, or securities that are not intended for business use with 

a limited amount set as follows:  

(I) The total amount of real property and right-of-use assets not intended for business use shall not 

exceed 50% of the net value on the Company’s most recent financial report, and shall not exceed 

30% of the net value on the subsidiary’s most recent financial report. 

(II) The total amount of securities shall not exceed 150% of the net value on the Company’s most recent 

financial report, and shall not exceed 150% of the net value on the subsidiary’s most recent financial 

report. 

(III) The investment in an individual security shall not exceed 100% of the net value on the Company’s 

most recent financial report, and shall not exceed 100% of the net value on the subsidiary’s most 

recent financial report. 

 

Article 8: Control over the acquisition and disposal of assets by the subsidiaries 

(I) The subsidiaries of the Company shall also stipulate the “Procedures for the Acquisition and 
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Disposal of Assets” in accordance with the “Regulations Governing the Acquisition and Disposal 

of Assets by Public Companies”, which shall be approved by the Board of Directors of each 

subsidiary. It should also be submitted to the supervisors of the domestic subsidiaries and then 

reported in the shareholders meeting for approval. The same applies to the amendments 

(II) The acquisition and disposal of assets by subsidiaries of the Company shall also be handled in 

accordance with the regulations. 

(III) If the subsidiary of the Company is not a domestic public offering company, and the assets obtained 

or disposed of meet the public announcement and filing standards, the Company should be notified 

on the date of the event. Also, the public announcement and filing matters shall be handled by the 

parent Company on the FSC’s designated website. 

(IV) The aforementioned subsidiaries shall apply the public announcement and filing standards as 

stipulated in Article 5 of the Procedures. The requirement of “paid-up capital or total assets” is based 

on the paid-in capital or total assets of the Company. 

 

Article 9: Disciplinary clauses 

When the personnel of the Company responsible for the acquisition and disposal of assets violate the 

“Regulations Governing the Acquisition and Disposal of Assets by Public Company” or the Procedures, they 

shall be disciplined according to the relevant provisions of the “Working Rules” of the Company. 

 

Chapter 2   Related party transactions 

 

Article 10: Recognition reference 

When the Company engages in any acquisition or disposal of assets from or to a related party, in addition to 

complying with the provisions of Chapter 1 and this Chapter, if the transaction amount reaches 20% or more 

of the company’s paid-in capital, 10% or more of the total assets, or NT$300 million or more, the company 

shall also obtain an appraisal report from a professional appraiser or a CPA’s opinion. The recognition of the 

related party and the subsidiary shall be handled in accordance with the provisions of the “Regulations 

Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Firms”. In addition to legal formalities, the 

substance of the relationship shall also be considered. 

 

Article 11: Resolution procedures 

When the Company intends to acquire or dispose of real property or right-of-use assets thereof from or to a 

related party, or when it intends to acquire or dispose of assets other than real property or right-of-use assets 

thereof from or to a related party and the transaction amount reaches 20% or more of the company’s paid-in 

capital, 10% or more of the total assets, or NT$300 million or more, except in trading of domestic government 

bonds or bonds under repurchase and resale agreements, or subscription or redemption of money market 
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funds issued by domestic securities investment trust enterprises, the company may not proceed to enter into 

a transaction contract or make a payment until the following matters have been approved by the Board of 

Directors and recognized by the supervisors: 

(I) The purpose, necessity, and anticipated benefit of the acquisition or disposal of assets. 

(II) The reason for choosing the related party as a transaction counterparty. 

(III) With respect to the acquisition of real property or right-of-use assets thereof from a related party, 

information regarding appraisal of the reasonableness of the preliminary transaction terms in 

accordance with the provisions of exclusion as stipulated in Article 12 and Article 13. 

(IV) The date and price at which the related party originally acquired the real property, the original 

transaction counterparty, and the transaction counterparty’s relationship to the company and the 

related party. 

(V) Monthly cash flow forecasts for the year commencing from the anticipated month of signing of the 

contract, evaluation of the necessity of the transaction, and reasonableness of the funds utilization. 

(VI) An appraisal report from a professional appraiser or a CPA’s opinion obtained in compliance with 

the provisions of Article 10. 

(VII) Restrictive covenants and other important stipulations associated with the transaction. 

The calculation of the transaction amounts referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be made in accordance 

with Article 5, and “within the preceding year” as used herein refers to the year preceding the date of 

occurrence of the current transaction. Items that have been approved by the Board of Directors and 

recognized by the supervisors need not be counted toward the transaction amount. 

With respect to the following transactions conducted between the Company and its parent company and 

subsidiaries, or subsidiaries where the Company directly or indirectly holds 100% of the issued shares or 

total capital, the Company’s Board of Directors may, pursuant to the regulations of Article 4, delegate the 

Chairman to decide such matters when the transaction is within a certain amount and have the decisions 

subsequently submitted to and ratified in the next board meeting: 

(I) Acquire or dispose of equipment or right-of-use assets thereof for business use. 

(II) Acquire or dispose of real property right-of-use assets for business use. 

When a matter is submitted for discussion by the board of directors pursuant to paragraph 1, the board of 

directors shall take into full consideration each independent director's opinions. If an independent director 

objects to or expresses reservations about any matter, it shall be recorded in the minutes of the board of 

directors meeting. 

Where an audit committee has been established in accordance with the provisions of the Act, the matters for 

which paragraph 1 requires recognition by the supervisors shall first be approved by one-half or more of all 

audit committee members and then submitted to the board of directors for a resolution, and shall be subject 

to mutatis mutandis application of Article 27, paragraphs 4 and 5. 
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Article 12: Assessment of the reasonableness of trading conditions 

Where the Company acquires real property or right-of-use assets thereof from a related party and appraises 

the reasonableness of the transaction cost according to the following methods: 

(I) Based upon the related party’s transaction price plus necessary interest on funding and the costs to 

be duly borne by the buyer. “Necessary interest on funding” is imputed as the weighted average 

interest rate on borrowing in the year the company purchases the property, provided that it may not 

be higher than the maximum non-financial industry lending rate announced by the Ministry of 

Finance. 

(II) Total loan value appraisal from a financial institution where the related party has previously created 

a mortgage on the property as a security for a loan, provided that the actual cumulative amount 

loaned by the financial institution shall have been 70% or more of the financial institution’s 

appraised loan value of the property and the period of the loan shall have been 1 year or longer. 

However, this shall not apply where the financial institution is a related party of one of the 

transaction counterparties. 

Where land and structures thereupon are combined as a single property purchased or leased in one transaction, 

the transaction costs for the land and the structures may be separately appraised in accordance with any of 

the means listed in the preceding paragraph. 

The Company that acquires real property or right-of-use assets thereof from a related party and appraises the 

cost of the real property or right-of-use assets thereof in accordance with the preceding 2 paragraphs shall 

also engage a CPA to check the appraisal and render a specific opinion. 

Where the Company that acquires real property or right-of-use assets thereof from a related party and with 

any of the following conditions should be handled in accordance with the provisions of the preceding article 

and the first three provisions shall not apply: 

(I) The related party acquired the real property or right-of-use assets thereof through inheritance or as 

a gift; 

(II) The time for the related party to sign a contract to acquire the real property or right-of-use assets 

has been more than five years from the date of the transaction. 

(III) The real property is acquired through signing of a joint development contract with the related party, 

or through engaging a related party to build real property, either on the company’s own land or on 

rented land. 

(IV) The Company and its parent company, subsidiaries, or subsidiaries where the Company directly or 

indirectly holds 100% of the issued shares or total capital, acquire the right-of-use assets for 

business use 
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Article 13: The matters to be handled when the imputed transaction cost is uniformly lower than the transaction price: 

When the results of the appraisal conducted in accordance with the preceding Article are uniformly lower 

than the transaction price, where the following circumstances exist, objective evidence has been submitted 

and specific opinions on reasonableness have been obtained from a professional real property appraiser and 

a CPA, it shall be handled in accordance with the provision of paragraph 3. 

(I) Where the related party acquired undeveloped land or leased land for development, it may submit 

proof of compliance with one of the following conditions: 

1. Where undeveloped land is appraised in accordance with the means in the preceding Article, and 

structures according to the related party’s construction cost plus reasonable construction profit are 

valued in excess of the actual transaction price. The “Reasonable construction profit” shall be 

deemed as the average gross operating profit margin of the related party’s construction division 

over the most recent 3 years or the gross profit margin for the construction industry for the most 

recent period as announced by the Ministry of Finance, whichever is lower. 

2. Transactions of the unrelated parties within the preceding year involving other floors of the same 

property or neighboring or closely valued parcels of land, where the land area and transaction 

terms are similar after the calculation of reasonable price discrepancies in floor or area land prices 

in accordance with standard property market sales or lease practices. 

(II) Where the Company acquiring real property or right-of-use assets by leasing from a related party 

provides evidence that the terms of the transaction are similar to the terms of transactions involving 

neighboring or closely valued parcels of land of a similar size by unrelated parties within the 

preceding year. 

The transactions involving neighboring or closely valued parcels of land in the preceding paragraph in 

principle refers to parcels on the same or an adjacent block and within a distance of no more than 500 meters 

or parcels close in publicly announced current value. Transactions involving similarly sized parcels in 

principle refers to transactions completed by unrelated parties for parcels with a land area of no less than 

50% of the property in the planned transaction. Within the preceding year refers to the year preceding the 

date of occurrence of the acquisition of the real property or right-of-use assets thereof. 

Where the Company acquires real property or right-of-use assets thereof from a related party and the results 

of appraisals conducted in accordance with the preceding two paragraphs are uniformly lower than the 

transaction price, and without any of the conditions as stated in paragraph 1 of this Article, the following 

steps shall be taken: 

(I) A special reserve shall be set aside against the difference between the real property or right-of-use 

assets transaction price and the appraised cost in accordance with paragraph 1 of Article 41 of the 

Securities Exchange Act, and may not be distributed or used for capital increase or issuance of bonus 

shares. The appropriated special reserve may not be used until recognizing a loss on decline in the 
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market value of the assets purchased or leased, or the assets have been disposed of or the lease has 

been terminated, or adequate compensation has been made, or the status quo ante has been restored, 

or there is other evidence confirming that there was nothing unreasonable about the transaction, and 

the FSC has given its consent. 

(II) The supervisors shall have it handled in accordance with Article 218 of the Company Act. 

(III) Actions taken pursuant to the preceding two subparagraphs shall be reported to a shareholders 

meeting, and the details of the transaction shall be disclosed in the annual report and any investment 

prospectus. 

 

Chapter 3 The control of the trading of financial derivatives 

 

Article 14: Trading principle and policy 

(I) Types of transactions: The Company may engage in the trading of financial derivatives, including 

forward contracts, options, interest rate and exchange rate swaps, futures, and composite contracts 

of the aforementioned products. If it is necessary to engage in the trading of other financial products, 

it must be resolved by the Board of Directors in advance. 

(II) Operating or hedging strategy: The Company engages in the trading of financial derivatives that 

includes both hedging and non-hedging purposes (for the purpose of trading). The strategy should 

be based on hedging business risks. The choice of trading products should be based on hedging risks, 

such as, foreign exchange income, expenses, assets, or liabilities arising from the business 

operations of the Company. If the objective environment is changed, choose the appropriate time to 

enter the market to engage in “non-hedging transactions” of financial derivatives, which should help 

increase the company’s non-operating income or reduce non-operating losses. In addition, the 

trading counterparty should choose financial institutions that have dealt with the Company as much 

as possible to avoid credit risk. It must be clearly defined as hedging transactions or financial 

operations for the pursuit of investment income and as the basis for accounting. 

(III) Trading amount: 

1. Hedging transactions: The net foreign exchange position (including the net portion expected to be 

generated in the future) after the consolidation of assets and liabilities is the upper limit of risk. 

2. Non-hedging transactions: No more than US$1.5 million. Traders shall propose the foreign 

exchange trend analysis report before action. The content of the report shall include foreign 

exchange market trend analysis and the recommended operation mode, which must be approved 

in advance. 

(IV) Total and individual contract loss limit 

1. Hedging transactions: Hedging transactions are conducted in response to the actual needs of the 
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Company. Therefore, the risks faced are already under the control of prior assessment, so there is 

no question of upper loss limit. 

2. Non-hedging transactions: The stop-loss point for the established position should be strictly 

adhered to in order to prevent excess losses. The stop-loss point shall not exceed 10% of the 

transaction contract amount, and the total accumulated loss for the whole year should not exceed 

US$300,000. 

(V) Division of powers and responsibilities 

1. Traders: The person responsible for the Company’s trading of financial derivatives,  designated 

by the Chairman. Responsible for the formulation of trading strategies within the scope of 

authorization, the execution of trading orders, the disclosure of future trading risks, and providing 

information to relevant departments for reference promptly. 

2. Accounting department: Responsible for the confirmation of transactions, bookkeeping and 

transactions records and data safekeeping, and regularly evaluating the fair market price of the 

held positions. Also, providing them to the traders and disclosing the related financial derivatives 

in the financial statements. 

3. Finance department: Responsible for the trading and delivery of financial derivatives. 

(VI) Performance evaluation essentials 

1. Hedging transactions: Base the performance evaluation on the profit and loss between the 

company’s booked exchange rate (interest rate) and the trading of financial derivatives. The 

performance evaluation is performed at least twice a month, and the performance is presented to 

the management for reference. 

2. Intended transactions: Base the performance evaluation on the actual profit and loss. The 

performance evaluation is performed at least once a week, and the performance is presented to the 

management for reference. 

 

Article 15: Risk management measures 

The Company is engaged in the trading of financial derivatives with the risk management scope and risk 

management measures to be adopted as follows: 

(I) Credit risk considerations: The selection of the transaction counterparty is based on the principle of 

financial institutions and futures brokers who have a good reputation with the company and can 

provide professional information. 

(II) Market risk considerations: The losses that may occur in the future market price fluctuations of 

financial derivatives are uncertain. Therefore, the stop-loss point for the established position should 

be strictly adhered to. 

(III) Liquidity risk considerations: In order to ensure the liquidity of financial derivatives, the trading 
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institution must have sufficient equipment, information, and trading capabilities and be able to trade 

in any market. 

(IV) Operational risk considerations: The authorization amount and work flow must be strictly observed 

to avoid the risk of operation. 

(V) Legal risk considerations: Any contract documents signed with financial institutions should be an 

international standardization document whenever possible to avoid legal risks. 

(VI) Financial product risk considerations: Internal traders should have comprehensive and correct 

expertise in the trading of financial derivatives in order to avoid misuse of financial derivatives with 

losses resulting. 

(VII) Cash delivery risk consideration: Authorized traders should strictly comply with the provisions 

within the authorization amount, and should pay attention to the company’s cash flow in order to 

ensure sufficient cash payment at the time of delivery. 

(VIII) Traders and operators responsible for confirmation and delivery may not be the same person. 

(IX) Confirmation personnel should regularly reconcile with the bank in person or by letter, and check 

whether the total amount of the transaction exceeds the upper limit specified in the Procedures. 

(X) The risk measurement, supervision, and control personnel shall be assigned to a department different 

from the personnel as specified in paragraph (I), and shall report to the Board of Directors or to the 

senior director who is not responsible for trading or the decision of the transaction or position. 

(XI) The held position should be evaluated at least once a week, but the hedging transactions needed for 

business operation should be evaluated at least twice a month. The evaluation report should be 

submitted to the senior executive authorized by the Board of Directors (Note: the senior 

management of the non-executive units should be designated). 

 

Article 16: Internal audit system 

(I) The internal auditors of the Company shall regularly understand the adequacy of the internal control 

for the trading of financial derivatives, and conduct monthly audits in accordance with the 

prescribed conditions on the trading of financial derivatives of the trading department with an audit 

report issued. The identified major nonconformities, if any, should be immediately reported to the 

Chairman and the senior executive appointed by the Board of Directors and with the supervisors 

informed in writing. (If independent directors have been appointed, they should also be informed in 

writing while having the supervisors informed regarding the matters stated in the preceding 

paragraph.) 

(II) The audit personnel of the Company shall include the trading of financial derivatives in the audit 

plan, and report the implementation of the last annual audit plan to the competent authority before 

the end of February of the following year, and report the corrected nonconformities to the competent 
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authorities for future reference before the end of May of the following year. 

 

Article 17: Regular evaluation methods and nonconformities handling process 

(I) Regularly or weekly evaluate the trading of financial derivatives; also, summarize the profit or loss 

of the current month or week and the open positions of non-hedging transactions that should be 

presented to the senior executives that are authorized by the Board of Directors and the Chairman 

as a reference for management performance evaluation and risk measurement. 

(II) The senior executives appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company should pay attention to 

the supervision and control of the risk of financial derivatives transactions. The Board should also 

assess whether the performance of the trading of financial derivatives is in compliance with the 

established business strategy and whether the risks assumed are within the company’s tolerance. 

(III) The senior executives authorized by the Board of Directors shall manage the trading of financial 

derivatives in accordance with the following principles: 

1. Regularly assess whether the currently used risk management measures are appropriate and handle 

it in accordance with the “Regulations Governing the Acquisition and Disposal of Assets by Public 

Companies” and the relevant provisions of the Procedures. 

2. Supervise the transactions and the profits and loss situation. If there is any nonconformity found, 

the necessary response measures shall be taken and it should be reported to the Board of Directors 

immediately. 

(The independent directors appointed, if any, should attend the board meeting to express their 

opinions.) 

(IV) The Company shall establish a log book for the trading of financial derivatives to have the types 

and amounts of financial derivatives transactions, the date of resolutions reached by the Board of 

Directors, the monthly or weekly periodic assessment report, and the periodic assessment of the 

Board of Directors and the senior executives authorized by the Board of Directors recorded. 

 

Chapter 4 Merger, Demergers, Acquisition or Transfer of Shares 

 

Article 18:  When Company conducts a merger, demerger, acquisition, or transfer of shares, prior to convening the board 

meeting to resolve the matter, it shall engage a CPA, attorney, or securities underwriter to give an opinion on 

the reasonableness of the share exchange ratio, acquisition price, or distribution of cash or other property to 

shareholders, and submit it to the Board of Directors for deliberation and approval. However, the requirement 

of obtaining an aforesaid opinion on the reasonableness issued by an expert may be exempted in the case of 

a merger by the Company or a subsidiary in which it directly or indirectly holds 100% of the issued shares 

or authorized capital, and in the case of a merger between subsidiaries in which the Company directly or 

indirectly holds 100% of the respective subsidiaries’ issued shares or authorized capital. 
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Article 19: The Company participating in a merger, demerger, acquisition, or transfer of shares shall prepare a public 

report to shareholders detailing important contractual contents and matters relevant to the merger, demerger, 

or acquisition prior to the shareholders meeting and include it along with the expert opinion referred to in the 

preceding paragraph when sending a shareholders notification of the shareholders meeting for reference in 

deciding whether to approve the merger, demerger, or acquisition. Provided, where a provision of another 

act exempts a company from convening a shareholders meeting to approve the merger, demerger, or 

acquisition, this restriction shall not apply. Where the shareholders meeting of any one of the companies 

participating in a merger, demerger, or acquisition fails to convene or pass a resolution, or the proposal is 

rejected by the shareholders meeting, the companies participating in the merger, demerger or acquisition shall 

immediately publicly explain the reason, the follow-up measures, and the preliminary date of the next 

shareholders meeting. 

 

Article 20: The Company participating in a merger, demerger, or acquisition shall convene a board meeting and 

shareholders meeting on the day of the transaction to resolve matters relevant to the merger, demerger, or 

acquisition, unless another act provides otherwise or the FSC is notified in advance of extraordinary 

circumstances and grants consent. A company participating in a transfer of shares shall call a board meeting 

on the day of the transaction, unless another act provides otherwise or the FSC is notified in advance of 

extraordinary circumstances and grants consent. 

When participating in a merger, demerger, acquisition, or transfer of another company’s shares, the Company 

shall prepare a fully written record of the following information and retain it for 5 years for reference: 

(I) Basic identification data for personnel: Including the occupational titles, names, and identification 

number (or passport numbers in the case of foreign nationals) of all persons involved in the planning 

or implementation of any merger, demerger, acquisition, or transfer of another company’s shares 

prior to information disclosure. 

(II) Dates of material events: Including the signing of any letter of intent or memorandum of 

understanding, the hiring of a financial or legal advisor, the execution of a contract, and the 

convening of a board of directors meeting. 

(III) Important documents and meeting minutes: Including merger, demerger, acquisition, and share 

transfer plans, any letter of intent or memorandum of understanding, material contracts, and minutes 

of board of directors meetings. 

When participating in a merger, demerger, acquisition, or transfer of another company’s shares, within two 

days from the date of the resolution of the Board of Directors, the information in subparagraph 1 and 2 of the 

preceding paragraph shall be submitted to the securities authority for reference in the prescribed format by 

the Internet Information System. 
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A company that participates in a merger, division, acquisition or share transfer has a company that is not 

listed or whose shares are traded at TPEx, and should sign an agreement with it and comply with the 

regulations. 

 

Article 21:  Share exchange ratio or acquisition price 

The Company participating in a merger, demerger, acquisition, or transfer of shares may not arbitrarily alter 

the share exchange ratio or acquisition price unless under the below-listed circumstances: 

(I) Cash capital increase, issuance of convertible corporate bonds, or the issuance of bonus share, 

issuance of corporate bonds with warrants, preferred shares with warrants, stock warrants, or other 

equity based securities. 

(II) An action, such as a disposal of major assets that affects the company’s financial operations. 

(III) An event, such as a major disaster or major change in technology that affects shareholder equity or 

share price. 

(IV) An adjustment where any of the companies participating in the merger, demerger, acquisition, or 

transfer of shares from another company, buys back treasury stock. 

(V) An increase or decrease in the number of entities or companies participating in the merger, demerger, 

acquisition, or transfer of shares. 

(VI) Other terms and conditions that the contract stipulates may be altered and that have been publicly 

disclosed. 

 

Article 22:  Contractual contents 

The contract for the Company’s participation in a merger, demerger, acquisition, or of shares shall record the 

rights and obligations of the participating companies, the change in the proportion of shares or the purchase 

price as described in the preceding article, and shall also record the following: 

(I) Handling of breach of contract; 

(II) Principles for the handling of equity-type securities previously issued or treasury stock previously 

bought back by any company that is extinguished in a merger or that is demerged. 

(III) The amount of treasury stock participating companies are permitted under law to buy back after the 

record date of calculation of the share exchange ratio, and the principles for handling thereof; 

(IV) The manner of handling changes in the number of participating entities or companies; 

(V) Preliminary progress schedule for plan execution, and anticipated completion date; 

(VI) Scheduled date for convening the legally mandated shareholders meeting if the plan exceeds the 

deadline without completion, and relevant procedures; 

 

Article 23: Things to know when the Company participates in mergers, demergers, acquisitions, or share transfers: 
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(I) Every person participating in or privy to the plan for merger, demerger, acquisition, or transfer of 

shares shall issue a written undertaking of confidentiality and may not disclose the content of the 

plan prior to public disclosure of the information and may not trade, in their own name or under the 

name of another person, in any stock or other equity security of any company related to the plan for 

merger, demerger, acquisition, or transfer of shares. 

(II) After public disclosure of the information, if any company participating in the merger, demerger, 

acquisition, or share transfer intends further to carry out a merger, demerger, acquisition, or share 

transfer with another company, all of the participating companies shall carry out anew the 

procedures or legal actions that had originally been completed toward the merger, demerger, 

acquisition, or share transfer, except that where the number of participating companies is decreased 

and a participating company’s shareholders meeting has adopted a resolution authorizing the Board 

of Directors to alter the limits of authority, such participating company may be exempted from 

calling another shareholders meeting to resolve the matter again. 

(III) Where the Company participating in a merger, demerger, acquisition, or transfer of another 

company’s shares is neither listed on an exchange nor has its shares traded on an OTC market, the 

Company shall sign an agreement with such company whereby the latter is required to abide by the 

provisions of Article 20 and the preceding two subparagraphs of the Procedures. 

 

Chapter 5 Other major matters 

 

Article 24:  The Company’s acquisition and disposal of assets shall keep all relevant contracts, meeting minutes, log 

books, appraisal reports and CPA, attorney, and securities underwriter opinions at the company, where 

they shall be retained for 5 years except where another act provides otherwise. 

 

Article 25:  Professional appraisers (referring to real property appraisers or other persons who are legally engaged in 

real property and equipment valuation operations) and their officers, certified public accounts, attorneys, 

and securities underwriters that provide the Company with appraisal reports, certified public accountant’s 

opinions, attorney’s opinions, or underwriter’s opinions shall meet the following requirements: 

(I) May not have previously received a final and un-appealable sentence to imprisonment for 1 year or 

longer for a violation of the Act, the Company Act, and Banking Act, the Insurance Act, the Financial 

Holding Company Act, or the Business Entity Accounting Act, or for fraud, breach of trust, 

embezzlement, forgery of documents, or occupational crime. However, this provision does not apply 

if 3 years have already passed since completion of the service of the sentence, since the expiration of 

the period of a suspended sentence, or since a pardon was received. 

(II) May not be a related party or de facto related party of any party to the transaction. 
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(III) If the company is required to obtain appraisal reports from two or more professional appraisers, the 

different professional appraisers or appraisal officers may not be related parties or de facto related 

parties of each other. 

When issuing an appraisal report or opinion, the personnel referred to in the preceding paragraph shall 

comply with the following: 

(I) Prior to accepting a case, they shall prudently assess their own professional capabilities, practical 

experience, and independence. 

(II) When examining a case, they shall appropriately plan and execute adequate working procedures, in 

order to produce a conclusion as the basis for issuing the report or opinion. The related working 

procedures, data collected, and conclusion shall be fully and accurately specified in the case working 

papers. 

(III) They shall undertake an item-by-item evaluation of the comprehensiveness, accuracy, and 

reasonableness of the sources of data used, the parameters, and the information, as the basis for 

issuance of the appraisal report or the opinion. 

(IV) They shall issue a statement attesting to the professional competence and independence of the 

personnel who prepared the report or opinion, and that they have evaluated and found that the 

information used is reasonable and accurate, and that they have complied with applicable law and 

regulations. 

 

Article 26:  For the Company’s acquisition or disposal of assets that must be approved by the Board of Directors in 

accordance with the “Procedures” or other legal requirements, if any director expresses objection and has 

a record or written statement made, the director’s objection information shall be sent to the supervisors. 

The objections or reservations, if any, of an independent director should be fully considered and stated in 

the minutes of the board meeting. 

 

Article 27:  The Procedures after the approval of the Board of Directors are sent to the supervisors and submitted to 

the shareholders meeting for approval. It is same for the amendments made. If any director expresses an 

objection and has a record or written statement made, the director’s objection information shall be sent to 

the supervisors. The objections or reservations, if any, of an independent director should be fully 

considered and stated in the minutes of the board meeting. 
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Appendix 4 (Shareholdings of Directors) 
 

King Slide Works Co., Ltd. 
Shareholdings of Directors and Supervisors                  Base date: April 30, 2023 

 

Title Name Election date 

Shareholding at the time of election Current shareholding  

Types Shares 

Percentage 
of the 

current 
issuance 

(%) 

Types Shares 

Percentage 
of the 

current 
issuance 

(%) 

Chairman Lin Tsung-Chi 2021.07.30 
Common 

stocks 
8,260,121 8.67% 

Common 

stocks 
8,260,121 8.67% 

Director 
Representative of Long Shen Investment Inc.: Lin 

Shu-Chen (Note 1) 
2021.07.30 

Common 

stocks 
6,232,767 6.54% 

Common 

stocks 
6,232,767 6.54% 

Director Wang Chun Chiang 2021.07.30 
Common 

stocks 
1,112,000 1.17% 

Common 

stocks 
1,536,000 1.61% 

Independent 

Director 
Hsu Fang-Yih 2021.07.30 

Common 

stocks 
－ － 

Common 

stocks 
－ － 

Independent 

Director 
Cai Wen-Zhi 2021.07.30 

Common 

stocks 
－ － 

Common 

stocks 
－ － 

Independent 

Director 
Wu Yu-Ti (Note 2) 2021.07.30 

Common 

stocks 
－ － 

Common 

stocks 
－ － 

Independent 

Director 
Yang Fu-Hsuan 2021.07.30 

Common 

stocks 
1,000 0.00% 

Common 

stocks 
1,000 0.00% 

Total  15,605,888   16,029,888  

Total number of shares issued on July 30, 2021: 95,297,072 shares 

Total number of shares issued on April 30, 2023: 95,297,072 shares 

Note 1: Representative of Long Shen Investment Inc. reassigned Lin Shu-Chen as the representative on March 21, 2023. 
Note 2: The independent director Wu, Hsiu is renamed to Wu, Yu-Ti at February 04, 2023. 
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Note 3: The number of shares that all directors of the Company should hold: 7,623,765 shares; shareholding as of April 30, 2023: 16,028,888 shares 

Note 4: The shareholding of independent directors is not included in the number of shares held by the directors. 

 


